
LAS VIRGENES - TRIUNFO
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY

AGENDA 
4232 Las Virgenes Road, Calabasas, CA 91302

CLOSING TIME FOR AGENDA IS 8:30 A.M. ON THE TUESDAY PRECEDING THE MEETING.
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54954.2 PROHIBITS TAKING ACTION ON ITEMS NOT ON
POSTED AGENDA UNLESS AN EMERGENCY, AS DEFINED IN GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 54956.5 EXISTS OR UNLESS OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF GOVERNMENT CODE
SECTION 54954.2(B) ARE MET.

5:00 PM December 4, 2017

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2 APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3 PUBLIC COMMENTS

Members of the public may now address the Board of Directors ON MATTERS NOT
APPEARING ON THE AGENDA, but within the jurisdiction of the Board. No action shall
be taken on any matter not appearing on the agenda unless authorized by Subdivision (b) of
Government Code Section 54954.2

4 CONSENT CALENDAR

A Minutes: Regular Meeting of November 6, 2017 (Pg. 4)
Approve.

5 ILLUSTRATIVE AND/OR VERBAL PRESENTATION AGENDA ITEMS

A Proclamation in Recognition of Upcoming Retirement: Carlos Reyes

B Pure Water Project Las Virgenes-Triunfo: Presentation by New Water
Resources, Linda Macpherson

C Annual Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report (Pg. 11)
Receive and file the Fiscal Year 2016-17 JPA Financial Statements and
Independent Auditor's Report.

6 ACTION ITEMS

A Tapia Process Air Improvements Project: Selection of Blowers and Diffusers (Pg. 49)
Approve the selection of Sulzer ABS process air blowers and OTT North America air
diffusers based on a competitive process, and find that the selected equipment must
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be designated by specific trade name in order to obtain necessary items that are each
only available from one source for construction of the Tapia Process Air
Improvements Project.

B Rancho Las Virgenes Composting Facility: Biofilter Maintenance (Pg. 81)
Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to issue a purchase order to
Viramontes Express, in the amount of $84,204.80, for the supply of new biofilter
media and the removal and disposal of the spent media.

C Tapia Water Reclamation Facility Fiscal Year 2017-18 Rehabilitation Project:
Award of Design Contract (Pg. 82)
Accept the proposal from Cannon, and authorize the Administering Agent/General
Manager to execute a professional services agreement, in the amount of $55,404, for
engineering design and design support during construction for the Tapia Water
Reclamation Facility Fiscal Year 2017-18 Rehabilitation Project.

D Tapia Primary Clarifier Sludge Collection System Drives: Award (Pg. 110)
Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to issue a purchase order to the
Frost Company, in the amount of $67,146.00, for the purchase and installation of new
drive units for the primary clarifiers at the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility.

E Rancho Las Virgenes Farm Sprayfields Operation and Maintenance:
Renewal of Agreement (Pg. 112)
Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to execute a one-year agreement
with W. Litten, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $250,000, for the operation and
maintenance of the Rancho Las Virgenes Farm Sprayfields.

7 BOARD COMMENTS

8 ADMINISTERING AGENT/GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

9 FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

10 INFORMATION ITEMS

A Carbon Tower Media Replacement: Authorization of Purchase Order (Pg. 128)

B Tapia and Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project: Award (Pg. 130)

11 PUBLIC COMMENTS

Members of the public may now address the Board of Directors ON MATTERS NOT
APPEARING ON THE AGENDA, but within the jurisdiction of the Board. No action shall
be taken on any matter not appearing on the agenda unless authorized by Subdivision (b) of
Government Code Section 54954.2

12 CLOSED SESSION

A Conference with Legal Counsel - Potential Litigation (Government Code
Section 54956.9): One Case
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In the opinion of Legal Counsel, disclosure of the identity of the litigants would be
prejudicial to the JPA.
 

13 ADJOURNMENT

Pursuant to Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and applicable federal
rules and regulations, requests for a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or
services, in order to attend or participate in a meeting, should be made to the Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board in
advance of the meeting to ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation. Notices, agendas, and public
documents related to the Board meetings can be made available in appropriate alternative format upon request.
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LAS VIRGENES – TRIUNFO  
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

5:00 PM November 6, 2017 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Chair Wall. 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Chair Wall in the Board Room at 
Las Virgenes Municipal Water District headquarters at 4232 Las Virgenes Road in 
Calabasas, California.  Josie Guzman, Clerk of the Board, conducted the roll call. 

Present: Directors Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, 
Tjulander, and Wall. 

Absent: Director Orkney 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Director Renger moved to approve the agenda. Motion seconded by Director 
Polan. Motion carried by the following vote: 

AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Orkney 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

None. 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

A Minutes: Regular Meeting of October 2, 2017: Approve 

Director Paule moved to approve Item 4A. Motion seconded by Director Tjulander. 
Motion carried by the following vote: 

ITEM 4A
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AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Orkney 
 
B Financial Review: First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2017-18 
 
Receive and file the Financial Review for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 
2017-18. 
 
Director Caspary moved to approve Item 4B. Motion seconded by Director 
Peterson. Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Orkney 
 
C Water Information Management System Update: Authorize Purchase 

Order 
 
Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to issue a purchase 
order to Hach Company, in the amount of $68,450, for the update of its Water 
Information Management System (WIMS) software. 

 
Director Caspary moved to approve Item 4C. Motion seconded by Director Polan. 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Orkney 
 

5. ILLUSTRATIVE AND/OR VERBAL PRESENTATION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 A Pure Water Project Las Virgenes-Triunfo: Update 
 
 Public Outreach: Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen provided 

a presentation at the Conejo/Las Virgenes Future Foundation’s 10X10 Event 

regarding potable water reuse, bringing water full circle, and the Pure Water 
Project Las Virgenes-Triunfo.  

 
 Director Caspary noted that he attended the 10X10 event, and he commended Mr. 

Pedersen on providing an outstanding presentation. He also noted that a map of 
the United States was displayed showing all of the pure water treatment plants that 
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are being proposed, and he suggested that perhaps the JPA could learn from 
projects that are much further along in terms of layout and design. 

  
 Director Paule also commended Mr. Pedersen on his presentation. He noted that 

the event was videotaped, and he stated that he would provide a copy of the 
videotaped portion of Mr. Pedersen’s presentation for the website. 

 
 Demonstration Project: Linda Macpherson from New Water Resources will be 

invited to attend the next JPA Board meeting to discuss the Demonstration Project 
and to share her experience working with other agencies on similar projects. 

  

6. ACTION ITEMS 
 
A 2018 JPA Board Meeting Calendar 
 
Review the 2018 JPA Board Meeting Calendar and make any scheduling 
adjustments. 
 
Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen presented the report.  
 
The Board made two adjustments to the 2018 JPA Board Meeting calendar: the 
January meeting would be held on January 10, 2018, and the September meeting 
would be held on September 5, 2018. 
 
B Tapia Water Reclamation Facility Chloride Study: Award of Contract 
 
Budget and appropriate $100,000; accept the proposal from Larry Walker 
Associates, Inc.; and authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to 
execute a professional services agreement, in the amount of $91,850, for the 
Tapia Water Reclamation Facility Chloride Study. 
 
Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen presented the report.  
 
A discussion ensued regarding addressing chloride impacts associated with 
residential water softeners. Administering Agent/General Manager David 
Pedersen stated that staff would discuss these concerns with the consultant for 
inclusion in the study. 
 
Director Pan suggested the JPA consider constructing additional recycled water 
storage facilities instead of discharging Tapia’s effluent to the Los Angeles River. 
 
Director Paule moved to approve Item 6B. Motion seconded by Director Peterson. 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
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ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Orkney 
 
C Tapia Water Reclamation Facility Summer Season Waste Load 

Allocation Compliance Study: Award of Contract 
 
Accept the proposal from Stantec Consulting Services, Inc.; and authorize 
the Administering Agent/General Manager to execute a professional 
services agreement in the amount of $149,515, for the Tapia Water 
Reclamation Facility Summer Season Waste Load Allocation Compliance 
Study. 
 
Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen presented the report.  
 
Director Peterson moved to approve Item 6C. Motion seconded by Director Lewitt.   
 
Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen responded to a question 
regarding a comparison and analysis of the three treatment alternatives by stating 
Stantec had previously prepared a Technical Memorandum to evaluate the 
alternatives as part of the negotiations with the Los Angeles Regional Water 
Quality Control Board for the summer discharge requirements. 
 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: Polan 
ABSENT: Orkney 
 
D Pure Water Project Las Virgenes-Triunfo: Award of Contract for Title 

XVI Feasibility Study Preparation 
 
Accept the proposal from Kennedy/Jenks Consultants and authorize the 
Administering Agent/General Manager to execute a professional services 
agreement, in the amount of $140,370 for preparation of a Title XVI Feasibility 
Study for the Pure Water Project Las Virgenes-Triunfo. 
 
Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen presented the report.  
 
Dawn Taffler, representing Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, responded to a question 
regarding whether single audits would be required for the U.S. Bureau of 
Reclamation grant by clarifying that a single audit would be performed if required 
by the grant agreement. 
 
Director Paule noted a correction to the diagram in Kennedy/Jenks Consultants’ 
proposal which should reference that customers from both partners of the JPA 
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would be beneficiaries of recycled water from the Westlake Filtration Plant. 
Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen responded that a 
correction would be made. 
 
Director Peterson moved to approve Item 6D. Motion seconded by Director 
Caspary. Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Orkney 
 
E State and Federal Legislative and Regulatory Advocacy: Contract 

Renewal  
 
Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to execute a one-year 
renewal of the professional services agreement with Best Best & Krieger 
LLP, in the amount of $130,000, for state and federal legislative and 
regulatory advocacy services. 
 
Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen presented the report.  
 
A discussion ensued regarding the budget for this item and the effectiveness of 
Best Best & Krieger’s assistance in securing grant funding and legislative 
advocacy services for the JPA. 
 
Director Lewitt moved to approve Item 6E. Motion seconded by Director Pan. 
Motion carried by the following vote: 
 
AYES: Caspary, Lewitt, Pan, Paule, Peterson, Polan, Renger, Tjulander, Wall 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Orkney 
 

7. BOARD COMMENTS 
 
None. 
 

8. ADMINISTERING AGENT/GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

Administering Agent/General Manager David Pedersen reported that flow 
augmentation to Malibu Creek was continuing, as well as intermittent use of the 
spray fields as a result of decreased recycled water use due to cool weather. He 
noted that the creek discharge prohibition period would continue through 
November 15th. 
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9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
None. 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
None. 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION  
 
 A Conference with Legal Counsel – Potential Litigation (Government 

Code Section 54956.9): One Case 
 
  In the opinion of Legal Counsel, disclosure of the identity of the 

litigants would be prejudicial to the JPA. 
 

The Board recessed to Closed Session at 5:38 p.m., and reconvened to Open 
Session at 5:56 p.m. 

 
 Authority Counsel Keith Lemieux announced there was no reportable action taken 

during the Closed Session. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Seeing no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was duly 
adjourned at 5:56 p.m. 
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JPA Regular Meeting   

November 6, 2017 

 
 

 
 
                                                                     
    James Wall, Chair 
     
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Glen Peterson, Vice Chair 
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ITEM 5C

December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Finance & Administration

Subject : Annual Financial Statements and Independent Auditor's Report

SUMMARY:

The Pun Group, LLP completed the annual audit of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers
Authority (JPA) financial statements and issued an opinion that they fairly present the financial
position of the JPA as of June 30, 2017.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive and file the Fiscal Year 2016-17 JPA Financial Statements and Independent
Auditor's Report.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No

ITEM BUDGETED:

No

DISCUSSION:

The JPA’s net position decreased by $1.8 million, or 1.9%, during Fiscal Year 2016-17,
compared to a decrease of $3.8 million, or 3.8%, during Fiscal Year 2015-16.  For Fiscal Year
2016-17, expenditures increased by 6.0%, or $0.8 million, and billings to participants
increased by 8.7%.  The increase in expenditures was due to increased direct and allocated
labor costs, including pension expenses.

The decrease in net position was largely due to depreciation of capital assets, which was
partially offset by participant capital contributions and recycled water sales.
The following table provides highlights from the JPA’s financial statements.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position

(in thousands of dollars)
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FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015

Recycled Water Sales $2,058 $2,287 $2,135
Other Operating Revenue 110 70 226
Total Operating Revenue 2,168 2,357 2,361

Depreciation Expense 5,629 6,492 6,318
Other Operating Expense 14,755 13,919 15,190
Total Operating Expense 20,384 20,411 21,508

Loss before Billings (18,216) (18,054) (19,147)

Billings to Participants 12,542 11,540 12,929

Non-Operating Revenue 45 22 13
Non-Operating Expense (554) (44) (167)
Net Loss before Capital Contributions (6,183) (6,536) (6,372)

Participant Capital Contributions 4,433 2,814 3,657

NET POSITION:
Net Position - Beginning of Year 92,760 96,482 99,197
Change in Net Position (1,750) (3,722) (2,715)
Net Position – End of Year $91,010 $92,760 $96,482

 
A representative from The Pun Group, LLP will be available at the JPA Board meeting to
answer questions.

Prepared by:  Angela Saccareccia, Finance Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
Descr ipt ion

Auditor's Letter
Audited Financial Statements
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November 22, 2017 
 
To the Board of Directors  

of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority  
Calabasas, California 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers 
Authority (the “JPA”) for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. Professional standards require that we provide you 
with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, 
Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned 
scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated April 24, 2017. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by the JPA are described in Note 2 to the basic financial statements.  
 

New Accounting Standards 
 

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures: this Statement establishes financial reporting standards for 
tax abatement agreements entered into by state and local governments. Application of this statement is effective 
for the JPA’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not have a significant impact on the JPA’s 
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans: 
this Statement amends the scope and applicability of Statement 68 to exclude pensions provided to employees of 
state or local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that 
(1) is not a state or local governmental pension plan, (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to 
employees of state or local governmental employers and to employees of employers that are not state or local 
governmental employers, and (3) has no predominant state or local governmental employer (either individually or 
collectively with other state or local governmental employers that provide pensions through the pension plan). 
Application of this statement is effective for the JPA’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not 
have a significant impact on the JPA’s financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – An Amendment of GASB 
Statement No. 14: this Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial statement presentation of 
component units of all state and local governments. The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit 
incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. 
Application of this statement is effective for the JPA’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not 
have a significant impact on the JPA’s financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 

200 East Sandpointe Avenue,  Suite 600, Santa Ana, California 92707  
Tel: 949-777-8800 • Fax: 949-777-8850

www.pungroup.com

3939352 Pun & McGeady_L_final.pdf   2   1/14/14   3:48 PM
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To the Board of Directors  
of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority  

Calabasas, California 
Page 2 
 
 

GASB has issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues. The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues 
that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions 
and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions 
of GASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of 
payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment 
of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the 
classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. This 
statement became effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2016, and should be applied retroactively. This 
statement did not have a significant impact on the JPA’s financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 
and 2016. 

 
No other new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2017. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the JPA during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of 
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive 
estimates affecting the JPA’s financial statements were: 
 

 Management’s estimate of the investment fair market value is based on information provided by the Union 
Bank, the trustee for the JPA’s investments in U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Securities. We evaluated 
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate of the investment fair market value in 
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

 Management’s estimate for the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the JPA’s historical data with the 
collectability of its accounts receivable. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
estimate for the allowance for doubtful accounts in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 
 

 Management’s estimate of the depreciable lives and estimated residual value of capital assets is based on the 
JPA’s capital assets policy. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation on 
capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement 
users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 
 

 Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 Note 3 – Cash and Investments 
 Note 6 – Participant Contributions 
 Note 8 – Commitment and Contingencies 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 
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To the Board of Directors  
of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority  

Calabasas, California 
Page 3 
 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other 
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has 
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and 
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial 
statements taken as a whole.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, 
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. 
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter 
dated November 20, 2017. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the JPA’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on 
those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, 
with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the Management’s Discussion & Analysis, which is Required Supplementary 
Information (“RSI”) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the RSI. 
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To the Board of Directors  
of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority  

Calabasas, California 
Page 4 
 
 
We were engaged to report on the Schedule of Changes in Participants’ Advance Account, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the 
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of 
preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our 
audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying 
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of the Las 
Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Santa Ana, California Kenneth H. Pun, CPA, CGMA 
 CPA Number: 88316 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 

To the Board of Directors 
of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority 

Calabasas, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority (the 
“JPA”), which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the JPA as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the respective changes in its financial position and cash flows 
thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

200 East Sandpointe Avenue,  Suite 600, Santa Ana, California 92707  
Tel: 949-777-8800 • Fax: 949-777-8850

www.pungroup.com

3939352 Pun & McGeady_L_final.pdf   2   1/14/14   3:48 PM
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To the Board of Directors 
of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority 

Calabasas, California 
Page 2 

2 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis on pages 5 to 9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the JPA’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Changes in Participants’ Advance Accounts is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Changes in Participants’ Advance Accounts is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Changes in Participants’ Advance Accounts is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 22, 2017, on our 
consideration of the JPA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely 
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the JPA’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the JPA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Santa Ana, California Kenneth H. Pun, CPA, CGMA 
November 22, 2017 CPA Number: 88316 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

To the Board of Directors 
of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority  

Calabasas, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Power Authority (the 
“JPA”), which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and have issued our report 
thereon dated November 22, 2017. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audits of the financial statements, we considered the JPA’s internal control over 
financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the JPA’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
JPA’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the JPA’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

200 East Sandpointe Avenue,  Suite 600, Santa Ana, California 92707  
Tel: 949-777-8800 • Fax: 949-777-8850

www.pungroup.com
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To the Board of Directors 
of the Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority 
Calabasas, California 
Page 2 

4 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Santa Ana, California Kenneth H. Pun, CPA, CGMA 
November 22, 2017 CPA Number: 88316 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
This section of the Joint Powers Authority (JPA) annual financial report presents our analysis of 
the JPA’s financial performance during the Fiscal Years that ended on June 30, 2016 and June 
30, 2017.  Please read it in conjunction with the Financial Statements, which follow this section. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The JPA’s net position decreased by $1.8 million or 1.9% during FY 2017 and by $3.8 
million or 3.9% during FY 2016. 

 
 During FY17 the JPA’s operating expenses, not including depreciation expense, 

increased $0.8 million, or up by 6.0% and during FY 2016 it decreased by $1.3 million or 
down by 8.4%.  

 
 Billings to JPA participants increased to $12.5 million during FY 2017 or by 8.7% more 

than the prior fiscal year and it decreased to $11.5 million during FY 2016 or by 10.7% 
from prior fiscal year.  

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Las Virgenes – Triunfo 
Joint Powers Authority (JPA) financial statements.  The JPA’s basic financial statements 
comprise two components:  Financial Statements and Notes to the Financial Statements. This 
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Financial Statements of the JPA report information about the JPA using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private sector companies.  These statements offer short- and long-term 
financial information about its activities.  The Comparative Statements of Net Position (CSNP) 
includes all of the JPA’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the nature and 
amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to JPA creditors (liabilities).  The 
CSNP also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the JPA.   
 
All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Comparative Statements 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  These statements reflect the result of the 
JPA’s operations over the past year.      
 
The final Financial Statements are the Comparative Statements of Cash Flows.  The primary 
purpose of this statement is to provide information about the JPA’s cash receipts and cash 
payments during the reporting period.  The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and 
net changes in cash resulting from operations and investments.  It also provides answers to such 
questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in 
cash balance during the reporting period. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 
The financial statements provide information on whether the District, as a whole, is in a stronger 
or weaker financial position compared to the last year. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provide a means to measure the 
District’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s 
net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.  
However, you will need to consider other non-financial factors such as changes in economic 
conditions, population growth, zoning, and new or changed government legislation.  
 
The JPA has seen a slight drought rebound but is still experiencing decreased sanitation flows 
and decreased sales of recycled water. In FY 2016-17 the JPA Board approved a Basis of Design 
Report for indirect potable reuse using Las Virgenes Reservoir, as the preferred approach to 
maximize the JPA’s beneficial use of recycled water and minimize discharges to Malibu Creek, 
subsequently the effort was renamed Pure Water Project Las Virgenes – Triunfo. In FY 2017-18 
the effort will continue with multiple studies, a potential acquisition of property, environmental 
reviews, design phases for a demonstration project, and continuing public outreach efforts.  
 
NET POSITION 
 
To begin our analysis, a summary of the JPA’s Statement of Net Position is presented in Table 1. 
 

TABLE 1 
Condensed Statements of Net Position 

(in thousands of dollars) 
 

FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 

Current Assets $8,172 $6,463 $6,832  
Capital Assets 91,010 92,760 96,482

   Total Assets 99,182 99,223 103,314

Due to Participants 7,422 5,812 5,952
Other Liabilities 750 651 880

   Total Liabilities 8,172 6,463 6,832

Total Net Position: $91,010 $92,760 $96,482  
 
 
As can be seen from the table above, net position of the JPA is equivalent to capital assets.  
Everything else is either a current asset or a liability.  The decrease in Net Position (and capital 
assets) is due to depreciation expense exceeding participant capital contributions. 
 
While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provides answers as to the nature and source of 
these changes. 
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TABLE 2 
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses 

and Changes in Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 
FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 

Recycled Water Sales $2,058 $2,287  $2,135 
Other Operating Revenue  110 70 226
Total Operating Revenue 2,168 2,357 2,361

Depreciation Expense 5,629 6,492 6,318
Other Operating Expense 14,755 13,919 15,190
Total Operating Expense 20,384 20,411 21,508

Loss before Billings -18,216 -18,054 -19,147

Billings to Participants 12,542 11,540 12,929

Non-Operating Revenue 45 22 13
Non-Operating Expense -554 -44 -167
Net Loss before Capital Contributions  -6,183 -6,536 -6,372

Participant Capital Contributions 4,433 2,814 3,657
   
NET POSITION: 
Net Position - Beginning of Year 92,760 96,482 99,197
Change in Net Position -1,750 -3,722 -2,715
Net Position – End of Year $91,010 $92,760  $96,482 
 
 
As reflected in Table 2, FY 2017 revenue from recycled water sales decreased compared to prior 
fiscal year due to a 9.4% reduction in recycled water purchases from Las Virgenes Municipal 
Water District, which was offset by an increase in FY 2016 of wholesale water rates. Recycled 
water sales to Triunfo Sanitation District were 2.5% lower in FY 2017 than prior fiscal year.  
Total Operating Expenses not including depreciation, increased 6.0% in FY 2017 from prior 
fiscal year due to increased direct and allocated labor costs, including pension expenses. Billings 
to Participants increased as a result of the decrease in revenues and increase in expenses in FY 
2017 compared to prior fiscal year. 
 
Revenue from recycled water sales increased slightly due to an increase in wholesale water rates 
in FY 2016 compared to prior fiscal year. Revenue in FY 2016 was suppressed by a 13% 
reduction in recycled water purchases from Las Virgenes Municipal Water District. Recycled 
water sales to Triunfo Sanitation District were flat year-over-year. Operating expenses decreased 
from FY 2016 to prior fiscal year due to decreased sanitation flow to the Tapia Water 
Reclamation Facility. 
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
At the end of FY 2017 and FY 2016, the JPA had net capital assets of $91.0 million and 
$92.8 million as shown in Table 3. 

 
 
 

 
 

The following is a summary of some of the major improvements to the system during 
FY2017 and FY 2016. 

 
TABLE 4 

Major Capital Improvement Projects 
 
 

FY 2017 
Centrate Equalization Tank        1,785  
Tapia Primary Tank No.2-5 Rehabilitation           874  
Tapia Gate & Drive Replacement           437  
Recycled Water Storage Study           224  
Facility Siting Study           177  
Process Air Improvements           143  
Rancho Las Virgenes Digester Cleaning and Repair           109  
Tapia Water Reclamation Reliability Improvement           109  
Total Major Projects $3,858  

 
 

 
Tapia Channel Mixing Improvements 

FY 2016   
      $1,105  

Recycled Water Seasonal Storage Plan         526  
Woodland Hills Golf Course Recycled Water Main Extension         378  
Rancho Las Virgenes Compost Facility New Loader         163  
Rancho Las Virgenes Digester Cleaning and Repair         162  
Centrate Equalization Tank         145  
Total Major Projects $2,479 

 

TABLE 3 
Capital Assets 

(in thousands of dollars) 
 FY 2017  FY 2016  FY 2015  

Land & Land Rights 12,259 12,259 12,259 
Sewer & Treatment Plant 120,682 118,814 117,535 
Compost Plant 71,196 70,972 63,275 
Recycled Water System 34,013 33,349 31,845 
Construction in Progress  3,040 2,217 10,250 

Subtotal 241,190 237,611 235,164 

Less Accumulated Depreciation -150,180 -144,851 -138,682 

Total Capital Assets 91,010 92,760 96,482 
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LONG TERM DEBT 
 
The JPA currently has no long-term debt.  All funding is provided by the participating agencies. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGER 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our residents, customers and creditors with a general 
overview of the JPA’s finances and to demonstrate the JPA’s accountability for the money it 
receives.  The responsibility for the JPA’s accounting and financial reporting rests with the staff 
of the Las Virgenes Municipal Water District.  If you have questions about this report or need 
additional financial information, contact the Las Virgenes Municipal Water District, Department 
of Finance and Administration, 4232 Las Virgenes Road, Calabasas, California, 91302. 
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2017 2016
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalent 6,007,921$               4,352,680$               
Investments 976,730                    1,000,650                 
Accounts receivable 955,388                    889,662                    
Interest receivable 11,442                      6,621                        
Inventories 177,904                    175,108                    
Prepaid items 42,692                      38,372                      

Total current assets 8,172,077                 6,463,093                 

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, not being depreciated 15,298,574               14,475,926               
Capital assets, being depreciated, net 75,711,003               78,284,060               

Total capital assets 91,009,577               92,759,986               

Total noncurrent assets 91,009,577               92,759,986               

Total assets 99,181,654               99,223,079               

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts and contracts payable and accrued liabilities 749,697                    651,396                    
Due to participants 7,422,380                 5,811,697                 

Total current liabilities 8,172,077                 6,463,093                 

Total liabilities 8,172,077                 6,463,093                 

NET POSITION
Investments in Capital Assets by Participants:

Las Virgenes Municipal Water District 60,406,116               61,600,523               
Triunfo Sanitation District 30,603,461               31,159,463               
Investments in Capital Assets by Participants  91,009,577               92,759,986               

Total net position 91,009,577$             92,759,986$            

Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority
Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
11
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2017 2016
OPERATING REVENUES:
Wholesale recycled water sales 2,057,700$               2,286,663$               
Other income 110,537 69,678

Total operating revenues 2,168,237                 2,356,341                 

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Treatment plant 4,084,694 4,265,142
Recycled water transmission and distribution 1,296,104 1,113,484
Compost plant 2,452,065 2,352,036
Sewer 72,881 65,253
Depreciation 5,629,045                 6,491,741                 
General and administrative 6,640,031 5,931,993
Other operating expenses 209,248 191,375

Total operating expenses 20,384,068               20,411,024               

OPERATING (LOSS) BEFORE 
BILLINGS TO PARTICIPANTS (18,215,831)              (18,054,683)              

Billings to participants 12,541,776 11,540,379

OPERATING (LOSS) (5,674,055)                (6,514,304)                

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income 45,010 22,563
Other expenses (528,443)                   -                            
Loss on disposal of capital assets (25,621)                     (44,061)                     

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)  (509,054)                   (21,498)                     

NET (LOSS) BEFORE
PARTICIPANTS' CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS  (6,183,109)                (6,535,802)                

Participants' capital contributions 4,432,700                 2,814,137                 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (1,750,409)                (3,721,665)                

NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 92,759,986               96,481,651               

End of year 91,009,577$             92,759,986$            

Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
12
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2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  

Cash received from participants 14,533,750$             13,787,981$             
Cash paid to suppliers for operations (14,792,198)              (14,144,789)              
Other revenue 110,537                    69,678                      

Net cash (used in) operating activities  (147,911)                   (287,130)                   

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of capital assets (4,304,341)                (2,814,135)                
Capital contributions 4,432,700                 2,814,137                 
Cash paid to participants -                                (140,423)                   
Cash received from participants 1,610,683                 -                                

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and 
related financing activities 1,739,042                 (140,421)                   

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:  
Interest received 60,985                      13,032                      
Purchase of investments (1,000,000)                (1,000,000)                
Cash receipts from sale of investments 1,003,125                 1,007,652                 

Net cash provided by investing activities  64,110                      20,684                      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  1,655,241                 (406,867)                   

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Beginning of year 4,352,680                 4,759,547                 

End of year 6,007,921$               4,352,680$              

NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Change in fair value of investments (5,268)$                     2,493$                     

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING (LOSS) TO NET
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating (loss) (5,674,055)$              (6,514,304)$              
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
(used in) operating activities:

Depreciation 5,629,045                 6,491,741                 
Other expenses (528,443)                   -                                
Write-off of comstruction in progress 400,084                    -                                
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (65,726)                     (39,061)                     
(Increase) decrease in inventories (2,796)                       2,747                        
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items (4,320)                       759                           
Increase (decrease) in accounts and contracts payable 

and accrued liabilities 98,300                      (229,012)                   

Net cash (used in) operating activities  (147,911)$                 (287,130)$                

Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
13
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Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 
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Note 1 – Reporting Entity 
 
On October 12, 1964, Las Virgenes Municipal Water District (“LVMWD”) and Triunfo Sanitation District (“TSD”) 
established Las-Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority (“JPA”) to construct, operate, maintain and provide for the 
replacement of a joint sewerage system to serve the Malibu Creek drainage area.  The equity of each member is equal 
to the member’s pro-rata share of capital assets, net of depreciation.  LVMWD has been the designated administering 
agent. 
 
 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations promulgated by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (“GASB”) commonly referred to as accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (“U.S. GAAP”).  GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting standards.   
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statements Presentation 
 
The Financial Statements (i.e., the statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position, and statement of cash flows) report information on all of the activities of the JPA.  
 
The Financial Statements are reported using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows.  Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to 
accrual and so has been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. 
 
The Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, when applicable. 

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net position) that apply to 
future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net position) that apply to future 
periods and that, therefore, are not recognized as revenue until that time. 
 

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the JPA. The JPA reports a 
measure of operations by presenting the change in net position from operations as "operating income" in the statement 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  Operating activities are defined by the JPA as all activities other 
than financing and investing activities (interest expense and investment income), and other infrequently occurring 
transaction of a non-operating nature.  Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary 
operations of the JPA. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less and are 
carried at cost, which approximates fair value. 
 
The JPA participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s 
investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these 
investments.  In addition, these structured notes and assets-backed securities are subject to market risk and to change in 
interest rates. The reported value of the pool is base on net asset value.  
 
Certain disclosure requirements, if applicable for deposit and investment risk, are specified for the following areas:  

 Interest Rate Risk  
 Credit Risk  

 Overall  
 Custodial Credit Risk  
 Concentration of Credit Risk  

 Foreign Currency Risk  
 

Fair Value Measurements 
 

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, investments, unless otherwise specified, recorded at fair value in the Statements of 
Net Position, are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair 
value. Levels of inputs are as follows: 
  

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets at the 
measurement date. 

 

Level 2 — Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability 
through corroboration with market data at the measurement date. 

 
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that reflect management's best estimate of what market participants would use 

in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Customer accounts receivable consist of amounts owed by private individuals and organizations for services rendered 
in the regular course of business operations.  Receivables are shown net of allowances for doubtful accounts, if any.  
The JPA also accrues an estimated amount for services that have been provided, but not yet billed.  Management has 
evaluated the accounts and believes they are all collectible. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories consist of expendable supplies and are valued at average cost method. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Prepaid items 
 
Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the fiscal year ended are recorded as prepaid 
items.  
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost was not available. 
Donated capital assets are valued at acquisition value on the date donated.  The JPA policy has set the capitalization 
threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000, all of which must have an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  
Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 3 to 100 
years. 

 

Plant 10 - 100 Years

Machinery and equipment 3 - 25 Years
 

 
Capital assets are shared in accordance with each participant’s capacity rights reserved in each component of the joint 
system. The allocation of costs for projects in process is based upon engineering estimates of the capacity rights and 
could increase or decrease when the final capacity rights are determined.  
 
Net Position 
 

Net position represents the difference between all other elements in the statement of net position and should be 
displayed in the following three components: 
 

Investment in Capital Assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation. 
 
Restricted – This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources related to those assets. 
 
Unrestricted – This component of net position is the amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in 
capital assets or the restricted component of net position. 

 
Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Position 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the JPA’s policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
 
Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosure. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Accounting Changes 
 
GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures: this Statement establishes financial reporting standards for tax 
abatement agreements entered into by state and local governments. Application of this statement is effective for the 
JPA’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not have a significant impact on the JPA’s financial 
statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans: this 
Statement amends the scope and applicability of Statement 68 to exclude pensions provided to employees of state or 
local governmental employers through a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that (1) is not a 
state or local governmental pension plan, (2) is used to provide defined benefit pensions both to employees of state or 
local governmental employers and to employees of employers that are not state or local governmental employers, and 
(3) has no predominant state or local governmental employer (either individually or collectively with other state or 
local governmental provide pensions through the pension plan). Application of this statement is effective for the JPA’s 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not have a significant impact on the JPA’s financial statements for 
the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – An Amendment of GASB Statement 
No. 14: this Statement amends the blending requirements for the financial statement presentation of component units 
of all state and local governments. The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a 
not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member. Application of this statement 
is effective for the JPA’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. This statement did not have a significant impact on the 
JPA’s financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
GASB has issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues. The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that 
have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 
67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in 
required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the 
guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments 
made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. This statement became effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2016, and should be applied retroactively. This statement did not have a significant 
impact on the JPA’s financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments 
 
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, cash and investments are reported in the accompanying statements of net position as 
follows: 

2017 2016

Cash and cash equivalent 6,007,921$            4,352,680$            
Investments 976,730                 1,000,650              

6,984,651$           5,353,330$            
 

 

At June 30, 2017 and 2016, cash and investments consisted of the followings: 
 

2017 2016

Deposits:
Pooled with Las Virgenes Municipal

Water District 1,035,616$            337,517$               
Investments:

California Local Agency Investment Fund 4,972,305 4,015,163
U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Security 976,730                 1,000,650              

Total cash and investments 6,984,651$           5,353,330$            
 

 

Demand Deposits 
 

At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the carrying amounts of cash deposits were $1,035,616 and $337,517, respectively, which 
were fully insured and/or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the LVMWD’s name 
as discussed below. 
 

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure the LVMWD’s 
cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral.  This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the 
effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor.  Thus, collateral for cash 
deposits is considered to be held in the LVMWD’s name. 
 

The fair value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the LVMWD’s cash deposits.  California law also 
allows institutions to secure the LVMWD’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 
150% of the LVMWD’s total cash deposits.  LVMWD may waive collateral requirements for cash deposits, which are 
fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. LVMWD, however, has not waived the 
collateralization requirements. 
 

Local Agency Investment Fund  
 

The JPA’s investments with Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) include a portion of the pool funds invested in 
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities.  These investments include the following:  
 

 Structured Notes - debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow characteristics 
(coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more indices and/or that have 
embedded forwards or options.  

 Asset-Backed Securities - the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their purchasers to 
receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from a pool of 
mortgages (such as CMO’s) or credit card receivables. 

 

LAIF is overseen by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board, which consists of five members, in accordance 
with State statute.  
 

As of June 30, 2017, the JPA had $4,972,305 invested in LAIF, which had invested 2.89% of the pool investment 
funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities compared to $4,015,163 and 2.81% at June 30, 2016. 
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the JPA’s Investment Policy 
 
The JPA follows LVMWD’s investment policy.  The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for 
the JPA by the California Government Code (or the LVMWD’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table 
also identified certain provisions of the California Code (or the LVMWD’s investment policy, where more restrictive) 
that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 

Maximum
Maximum Percentage of Investment

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio In One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Bills, Bonds and Notes 5 Years None None
U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Securities 5 Years None None
Time Deposits 1 Year 25% None
Repurchase Agreements 30 days 10% None
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) None None $50,000,000
Bond issued by Local Agencies or States 5 Years None None
Money Market Mutual Funds None 20% 10%
Certificates of Deposits 5 years 25% $250,000

 
 

Disclosures Relating to Fair Value Measurement 
 
Information about the fair value measurement of the JPA’s investments is as follows: 

 

Significant Other
Observable Input

(Level 2) Uncategorized Total

Significant Other
Observable Input

(Level 2) Uncategorized Total

California Local Agency Investment Fund -$                          4,972,305$            4,972,305$            4,015,163$            4,015,163$     

U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Security 976,730                 -                            976,730                 1,000,650              -                            1,000,650       

Total Investments 976,730$               4,972,305$            5,949,035$            1,000,650$            4,015,163$            5,015,813$     

2017 2016

 
 

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market 
interest rates. One of the ways that the JPA manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of 
shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is 
maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for 
operations.  
 
The JPA’s investments of $5,949,035 and $5,015,813 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, made up of investments 
in LAIF and U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Securities at June 30, 2017 and 2016.  Investments in LAIF are 
highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within twenty-four hours without loss of interest.  Investment in 
U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Securities matures in the year ending June 30, 2021, four years from June 30, 
2017.  
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Note 3 – Cash and Investments (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  
Investments in LAIF in the amounts of $4,972,305 and $4,015,163 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, are 
unrated.  Investment in U.S. Government Sponsored Agency Securities in the amount of $976,730 and $1,000,650 are 
unrated and rated AA+ at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  
 
Disclosures Relating to Custodial Credit Risk 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and LVMWD’s investment policy do not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect 
to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial 
credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of government 
investment pools (such as LAIF). 
 
 
Note 4 – Capital Assets 
 
Summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2016 Additions Deletions Reclassification June 30, 2017

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and land rights 12,258,791$         $                    -  -$                         -$                         12,258,791$        
Construction in progress 2,217,135            4,304,341            (400,084)              (3,081,609)           3,039,783            

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 14,475,926          4,304,341            (400,084)              (3,081,609)           15,298,574          

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer and treatment plant 118,814,505        -                           (268,939)              2,136,266            120,681,832        
Compost plant and farm 70,971,846          -                           (56,548)                280,994               71,196,292          
Recycled water system 33,348,740          -                                                  -  664,349               34,013,089          

Total capital assets, being depreciated 223,135,091        -                           (325,487)              3,081,609            225,891,213        

Less: accumulated depreciation
Sewer and treatment plant (79,279,313)         (2,793,048)           263,514               -                           (81,808,847)         
Compost plant and farm (46,378,352)         (1,894,081)           36,352                 -                           (48,236,081)         
Recycled water system (19,193,366)         (941,916)                                     -  -                           (20,135,282)         

Total accumulated depreciation (144,851,031)       (5,629,045)           299,866               -                           (150,180,210)       

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 78,284,060          (5,629,045)           (25,621)                3,081,609            75,711,003          

Total capital assets, net 92,759,986$        (1,324,704)$        (425,705)$           -$                         91,009,577$       
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Note 4 – Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
Summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions Reclassification June 30, 2016

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land and land rights 12,258,791$         $                    -  -$                         -$                         12,258,791$        
Construction in progress 10,250,247          2,814,135            -                           (10,847,247)         2,217,135            

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 22,509,038          2,814,135            -                           (10,847,247)         14,475,926          

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer and treatment plant 117,534,566        -                                                  -  1,279,939            118,814,505        
Compost plant and farm 63,275,176          -                           (367,174)              8,063,844            70,971,846          
Recycled water system 31,845,276          -                                                  -  1,503,464            33,348,740          

Total capital assets, being depreciated 212,655,018        -                           (367,174)              10,847,247          223,135,091        

Less: accumulated depreciation
Sewer and treatment plant (75,900,762)         (3,378,551)                                  -  -                           (79,279,313)         
Compost plant and farm (44,506,034)         (2,195,433)           323,115               -                           (46,378,352)         
Recycled water system (18,275,609)         (917,757)                                     -  -                           (19,193,366)         

Total accumulated depreciation (138,682,405)       (6,491,741)           323,115               -                           (144,851,031)       

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 73,972,613          (6,491,741)           (44,059)                10,847,247          78,284,060          

Total capital assets, net 96,481,651$        (3,677,606)$        (44,059)$             -$                         92,759,986$       
 

 
 
Note 5 – Due to Participants 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, additional advances received from the participants were in the amount 
of $19,300,025 and $14,480,333, respectively. The advances received from the participants are used to pay for the 
operating, capital, and administrative cost of the JPA.  At June 30, 2017 and 2016, due to participants were in the 
amount of $7,422,380 and $5,811,697, respectively.  
 
 
Note 6 – Participant Contributions 
 
Cost of the JPA is shared by the participants based on the following methodology.  Variable operation and 
maintenance cost are prorated between the participants based on the average sewage flow contributed to the joint 
system.  Fixed operating and maintenance cost are prorated between the participants based on the participants’ 
respective capacity rights in the facility.  Capital costs are prorated between the participants based on the participants’ 
respectively capacity rights in the facility.  Annual audit costs are shared equally.  General and administrative costs are 
based on the actual cost of labor.  Lastly, land acquisition costs are shared based on the capacity rights in the project 
for which the land is acquired.  As of January 1, 2005, the joint system, except for the sewer collection system, is 
allocated by 70.6% to LVMWD and 29.4% to TSD. 
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Note 6 – Participant Contributions (Continued) 
 
The following is the summary of the contributions made by the participants for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 
2016: 

Operating Capital
Contribution Percentage Contribution Percentage

LVMWD 8,483,081$          67.6% 3,124,743$          70.5%
TSD 4,058,695            32.4% 1,307,957            29.5%

Total 12,541,776$        100.0% 4,432,700$         100.0%

Operating Capital
Contribution Percentage Contribution Percentage

LVMWD 7,623,145$          66.1% 1,986,781$          70.6%
TSD 3,917,234            33.9% 827,356               29.4%

Total 11,540,379$        100.0% 2,814,137$         100.0%

2017

2016

 
 
 
Note 7 – Risk Management 
 
The JPA is covered under the LVMWD’s insurance policies.  The LVMWD retained Tolman & Wiker Insurance 
Service, LLC for general liability, property, auto and physical damage.  The coverage for the general liability provided 
for $11 million per occurrence and $61 million for the aggregate, with a $50,000 self insured retention limit per 
occurrence.  The coverage for the property provided for $61 million per occurrence with a self insured retention limit 
of $50,000 per occurrence. 
 
During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection have had settlement or judgments that 
exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There have been no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability cover 
from coverage in the prior year.  
 
 
Note 8 – Commitment and Contingencies 
 
Lawsuits 
 
The JPA is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is 
the opinion of the JPA’s legal counsel and the JPA’s management that resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the JPA.  
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Note 8 – Commitment and Contingencies (Continued) 
 
Commitments 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the JPA had five material construction commitments evidenced by contractual commitments with 
contractors in the amount of $776,831. 
 

Contractual
Project Name Commitment

Centrate Tank Equalization Project 122,620$             
Reservoir Water Study 189,974               
Tapia Process Air Pipeline Evaluation 148,438               
Calleguas Intertie Design 190,883               
Amendment Bid Design Services 124,915               

Total 776,831$            
 

 
As of June 30, 2016, the JPA had five material construction commitments evidenced by contractual commitments with 
contractors in the amount of $2,319,964. 
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Las Virgenes Triunfo Las Virgenes Triunfo 
Municipal Sanitation Municipal Sanitation 

Water District District Water District District 

Due to (from) Participants - July 1, 2016 161,397$        (63,101)$              2,319,689$          1,076,196$     
Advance from participants 364,378          697,231               8,492,174            4,658,798       
Interfund activities with participants -                      -                           -                           -                      
Constructions costs allocated (218,879)         (91,148)                -                           -                      
Change in fair market value of LAIF (17,222)           (11,315)                -                           -                      
Change in fair market value of LAIF - Prior year (2,368)             (775)                     -                           -                      
Grant income -                      -                           -                           -                      
Other miscellaneous income -                      -                           -                           -                      
Billings to participants for operating expenses -                      -                           (8,492,174)           (4,067,010)      
Billings to participants from replacement fund interest income -                      -                           -                           -                      
Interest income from (to) participants 2,229              1,464                   -                           -                      
Adjustment billing to participants for operating fund -                      -                           -                           -                      
Recycled water billings to Triunfo Sanitation District -                      -                           -                           (688,676)         

Due to (from) Participants - June 30, 2017 289,535$       532,356$            2,319,689$          979,308$       

(Continued)

Las Virgenes Triunfo Las Virgenes Triunfo 
Municipal Sanitation Municipal Sanitation 

Water District District Water District District 

Due to (from) Participants - July 1, 2016 338,007$        190,448$             2,319,846$          1,061,709$     
Advance from participants 26,442            (168,929)              7,626,632            4,664,471       
Constructions costs allocated (459,666)         (191,419)              -                           -                      
Change in fair market value of LAIF 2,368              775                      -                           -                      
Change in fair market value of LAIF - Prior year (1,317)             (328)                     -                           -                      
Grant income -                      -                           -                           -                      
Other miscellaneous income 254,746          106,085               -                           -                      
Billings to participants for operating expenses -                      -                           (7,626,632)           (3,920,982)      
Billings to participants from replacement fund interest income -                      -                           -                           -                      
Interest income from (to) participants 817                 267                      -                           -                      
Adjustment billing to participants for operating fund -                      -                           (157)                     (65)                  
Recycled water billings to Triunfo Sanitation District -                      -                           -                           (728,937)         

Due to (from) Participants - June 30, 2017 161,397$       (63,101)$             2,319,689$          1,076,196$    

(Continued)

and Truck Sewers Maintenance

Construction Funds Operating Funds
Tapia Plant Operations and 

Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority
Schedule of Changes in Participants' Advance Accounts

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Tapia Plant
and Truck Sewers 

Construction Funds 
Operations and 

Maintenance

Operating Funds

26
46



Las Virgenes Triunfo 
Municipal Sanitation 

Water District District 2017 2016

Due to (from) Participants - July 1, 2015 1,074,315$     1,243,201$          5,811,697$          5,952,119$     
Advance from participants 3,309,667       1,777,777            19,300,025          14,480,333     
Interfund activities with participants -                      -                           -                           -                      
Constructions costs allocated (2,905,863)      (1,216,810)           (4,432,700)           (2,814,137)      
Change in fair market value of LAIF -                      -                           (28,537)                3,143              
Change in fair market value of LAIF - Prior year (3,143)                  (1,645)             
Grant income -                      -                           -                           38,936            
Other miscellaneous income 1,269              528                      1,797                   421,402          
Billings to participants for operating expenses -                      -                           (12,559,184)         (11,547,614)    
Billings to participants from replacement fund interest income 9,093              8,315                   17,408                 7,235              
Interest income from (to) participants -                      -                           3,693                   1,084              
Adjustment billing to participants for operating fund -                      -                           -                           (222)                
Recycled water billings to Triunfo Sanitation District -                      -                           (688,676)              (728,937)         

Due to (from) Participants - June 30, 2016 1,488,481$    1,813,011$         7,422,380$          5,811,697$    

(Concluded)

Las Virgenes Triunfo 
Municipal Sanitation 

Water District District 2016 2015

Due to (from) Participants - July 1, 2015 992,546$        1,049,563$          5,952,119$          6,533,985$     
Advance from participants 1,535,145       796,572               14,480,333          16,629,994     
Constructions costs allocated (1,527,115)      (635,937)              (2,814,137)           (3,656,798)      
Change in fair market value of LAIF -                      -                           3,143                   1,645              
Change in fair market value of LAIF - Prior year -                      -                           (1,645)                  (1,703)             
Grant income 27,489            11,447                 38,936                 -                      
Other miscellaneous income 42,763            17,808                 421,402               -                      
Billings to participants for operating expenses -                      -                           (11,547,614)         (12,935,275)    
Billings to participants from replacement fund interest income 3,487              3,748                   7,235                   5,689              
Interest income from (to) participants -                      -                           1,084                   1,123              
Adjustment billing to participants for operating fund -                      -                           (222)                     -                      
Recycled water billings to Triunfo Sanitation District -                      -                           (728,937)              (626,542)         

Due to (from) Participants - June 30, 2016 1,074,315$    1,243,201$         5,811,697$          5,952,119$    

(Concluded)

Capital Assets

Total

Operating Funds
Replacement of 

Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority
Schedule of Changes in Participants' Advance Accounts (Continued)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

Total

Replacement of 
Capital Assets

Operating Funds
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ITEM 6A

December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Facilities & Operations

Subject : Tapia Process Air Improvements Project: Selection of Blowers and
Diffusers

SUMMARY:

On May 1, 2017, performance-based specifications for replacement air diffusers and process
air blowers at the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility were released to evaluate multiple
vendors and technologies through a competitive process to allow selection of equipment
that would provide the best overall value to the JPA.

After evaluating proposals for both the blowers and diffuser equipment, it was determined that
the diffuser proposal by OTT North America offered the best balance of performance, strong
references, capital cost and life-cycle cost.  The proposals for blower equipment were
evaluated based on the proposed use of the OTT North America diffuser system.  The blower
proposal by Sulzer ABS was determined to offer the best balance of performance, strong
references, capital cost and life-cycle cost.

Selection of equipment prior to the completion of the design is necessary to allow for a
comprehensive bid package that is specific to the selected equipment due to varying
technologies, electrical needs, quantity required and layout requirements.  In order to allow
public bidding of the project with the pre-selected equipment, the JPA Board must make a
finding pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 3400 that the particular materials or products
are designated by specific brand or trade name in order to obtain a necessary item that is only
available from one source.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Approve the selection of Sulzer ABS process air blowers and OTT North America air
diffusers based on a competitive process, and find that the selected equipment must be
designated by specific trade name in order to obtain necessary items that are each only
available from one source for construction of the Tapia Process Air Improvements Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No

ITEM BUDGETED:
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Yes

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

There is no direct and immediate financial impact associated with selecting the blower and
diffuser equipment.  However, selection of the equipment based on a competitive process
including consideration of both capital and life-cycle costs will ensure the best value to the JPA
upon future award of a construction contract for the project.

DISCUSSION:

With approval of the JPA Board, Pacific Advanced Civil Engineering (PACE) prepared a
performance-based specification for the procurement of retrievable fine bubble air diffusers
and process air blowers for the Tapia Process Air Improvements Project.  A requests for
proposals (RFP) was sent to various equipment manufacturers using the specifications
prepared by PACE.

In order to compare all of the manufacturers' proposals, evaluation criteria was established,
and each criterion was assigned a weight.  A higher weight as assigned to more
important elements of the evaluation criteria.  Each equipment solution proposed was rated on
a scale with the highest score indicating the most competitive or best value.  For each
criterion, the score and weight were multiplied and the products were added to arrive at a total
score. 

Attached for reference are technical memos that describe the evaluation of the proposals. 
The appendices are not included but available upon request.  Following is a summary:

Fine Bubble Air Diffusers:

Six proposals were received from the following four vendors:

Aquarius Technologies, Inc.
Environmental Dynamics International
OTT (two options submitted)
SSI (two options submitted)

The proposals had significantly different designs with different types of diffusers and a varying
number of grids and diffusers.  All of the retrievable fine bubble air diffuser equipment
proposed met the requirements of the RFP.  The diffuser proposals were evaluated based
upon capital cost, life-cycle cost, performance, fabrication and feedback from references.
Based on the criteria ranking and evaluation, staff recommends selecting Option No. 1 by
OTT North America.  The two options provided by OTT ranked very closely, but Option No.
1 was slightly favored due to the higher performance outweighing the lower capital cost of
Option No. 2.

Process Air Blowers:

Six proposals were received from the following vendors:
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Sulzer/ABS
Neuros
PillAerator
Next Turbo
Atlas Copco
Spencer

The proposals varied in design with different bearing types, physical footprints, drive types,
cooling systems, horsepower and numbers of blowers.  Based on the criteria ranking and
evaluation, staff recommends selecting the proposal by Sulzer.  The Sulzer equipment will
have the lowest overall cost-of-ownership, and the manufacturer received a perfect reference
score of 10.  Although Neuros scored 0.5 points higher than Sulzer and provided value in the
form of initial capital cost and energy efficiency, Sulzer offers the most significant potential
savings to the JPA when maintenance costs are taken into account.

A 10-Year Maintenance and Repairs Contract with two 5-year renewal options will be provided
by Sulzer.  The contract includes site visits by the manufacturer’s certified service technicians
to perform all repairs, part replacements and maintenance services, including but not limited
to, lubricant changes, bearing services and electrical components, as well as any repairs as a
result of operating the blowers under site conditions.  Due to the significantly higher cost of the
Neuros Maintenance Contract, the JPA will save nearly $104,000 over the first 10-year
period and save nearly $270,000 over the first 20-year period by selecting the Sulzer/ABS
process air blowers. 

Prepared by:  Jared Q. Adams, P.E., Associate Engineer

ATTACHMENTS:
Descr ipt ion

Tapia Process Air Blower Evaluation TM
Tapia Fine Bubble Air Diffuser Evaluation TM
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Tapia WRF Process Air Improvements - WWTP Upgrades August 15, 2017 
Fine Bubble Diffuser Equipment Evaluation – B058 Page 2 of 15 
 

 

Design Parameter Value 
Type of Wastewater Treatment Process 4-Stage BNR 
Process Air Upgrades Treatment  Design Flow 5.5 - 12.0 MGD  
Number of Aeration Basins 6  
Basin Nominal Floor Dimensions 160 ft x 30 ft  
Basin Nominal Top Dimensions* 156 ft x 25 ft  
Nominal Operating Water Depth** 14.5 ft  
Nominal Volume per Basin 508,000 gallons 
α - Alpha Factor 0.55 
Β – Beta Factor 0.95 
Design Dissolved Oxygen Concentration 2.0 mg/L 
Aeration Period 24-hr continuous operation 
*”Top Dimensions” refers to the clear opening available to retrieve the diffuser grids from the basin due to the angle or “Y” wall 
configuration of the basin (See Figure 3). 
** Conical floor section in basins will be leveled as part of the project upgrades. Operating water level will be raised to 14.5 from 
existing 14.1 as part of the basins’ upgrades. 
 
The performance specifications required equipment and processes to be designed based on the influent 
parameters and aeration requirements summarized in Table 2. The aeration requirements are based on 
the effluent quality requirements summarized in Table 3. 

 
Table 2 – Influent Conditions and Aeration System Design Parameters  

 

Process  Flow 
(MGD) 

BOD (mg/L) 
(Min/Max) 

TKN 
(mg/L) 

(Min/ Max) 
MLSS 
(mg/L) 

OTR 
(lbs/day) 

(Ave) 

OTR 
(lbs/day) 

(Max) 

Min 
Design 
SOTE 
(%)* 

4-Stage 
BNR 
  
  
  
  
  

5.5 160/290 35/ 46 2500 8,654 14,136 28 

6.9 160/ 290 35/ 46 3000 10,114 16,108 28 

7.5 160/290 35/ 46 3000 11,304 17,513 27 

9.3 160/290 46 4000 14,212 21,276 25 

12 184/ 290 50 4500 21,319 26,030 24 
*Minimum Design SOTE at Average OTR and based on using only 80% of installed diffusers due to swing zones.  

 
Table 3 – Effluent Quality Requirements 

 
Effluent Quality Requirements Value 

BOD5 10 mg/L 
Ammonia* 3.1 / 2.3 mg/L 

Nitrate - Nitrite 8 mg/L 
Phosphorous 3 mg/L 

*Effluent Ammonia limits are 3.1 mg/L to Malibu Creek and 2.3 mg/L to Los Angeles River. 

 
Evaluation:  
In order to compare each manufacturer’s proposal, evaluation criteria were established and assigned a 
weight; the higher the weight, the more important the aspect is to the project. Each equipment solution 
proposed was rated on a scale, with the highest score indicating most competitive or best. For each 
criterion, the score and the weight were multiplied together. The sum of the multiplied numbers for each 
equipment solution was used to arrive at the total score. The equipment with the highest total score will 
be the recommended selection. The criteria definitions are listed below, with the Evaluation Criteria 
Ranking following in Table 5. 
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Criteria Definitions 
Capital Cost: The Fixed Price Proposal cost to purchase and deliver the complete 

equipment F.O.B. jobsite, along with all the associated requirements 
listed on 1a – 1g of the Section 1 Proposal Requirements.  Cost within 
5% of the lowest is scored the same.  

 
20-yr Life Cycle Cost:   Evaluation of capital cost and O&M over 20-year period in today’s value 

based on 5% annual interest rate. Cost within 5% of the lowest is scored 
the same. 

 
O&M Costs: Diffuser & related equipment replacement, labor, and other operation 

and maintenance costs on a yearly basis.  O&M Cost shall also include 
electrical cost based on Vendor’s guaranteed SOTE.  Evaluation shall 
include a 10% annual replacement of diffusers  

 
Fabrication/    
Material of Construction: Durability/quality of materials of construction.  Higher durability and 

higher quality of construction will be scored higher 
 
Performance:   Performance of the system will be based on Standard Oxygen Transfer 

Efficiency (SOTE) for different process air rates and treatment flows.  
Also evaluation of flux rates; pressure losses etc. See Section 4.0 for 
design requirements and Exhibit C.  The higher the SOTE, the higher the 
score.  Efficiencies within 0.5% of the higher SOTE will be scored the 
same.  For example, in a situation where the SOTEs are 31%, 31.5%, 
and 32%.  32% and 31.5% will be scored the same, while 31% will be 
scored lower.  

 
Installation Requirements: Requirements for aeration piping connections; basin floor requirements; 

manufacturer supplied support system; etc.  Systems with minimal field 
installation or modifications will be scored higher.  

 
Retrievability Requirements: Requirements for retrieving/ removing the submerged diffusers for 

maintenance or repair using District-provided overhead crane, including 
the placement of the aeration grids back into service.  Systems that can 
be retrieved or removed with minimum requirements and staff will be 
scored higher.  Vendors have the option to provide its own retrieval 
mechanism; in which case, both retrieval options will need to be shown.  
Simplicity and minimal requirements will be scored higher. 

 
Supply Bond: Willingness to provide a Supply Bond for 100% of the equipment’s 

contract amount according to the terms of Exhibit A. Proposals not 
accepting the terms of the Supply Bond will not be considered. 

 
Performance Bond: Willingness to agree to terms of the Performance Bond (Exhibit B) for 

100% of the equipment’s contract amount and to provide a performance 
guarantee for 2 years on the equipment. Proposals not accepting the 
terms of the bond will not be considered. 

 
Completion of Supply: The completeness of the proposal to include all requested information for 

evaluation of the proposal without inferences from the Engineer or the 
District.   

 
 

 

68



Tapia WRF Process Air Improvements - WWTP Upgrades August 15, 2017 
Fine Bubble Diffuser Equipment Evaluation – B058 Page 4 of 15 
 

 

Reference List: List of similar equipment installations, including WRF process; number of 
units; reference current contact information (WRF name, location, 
person, phone number). Each vendor shall provide an installation list 
with contact information for a minimum of 5 systems in operation in the 
United States of America (no more than 10 references).  2 of the 5 
installations shall be a retrievable-type installations.   

The District will attempt 3 calls to each reference (up to 5 successful 
references only – 2 of which must be retrievable type).  Each successful 
references shall be asked to rank their overall experiences from 1 – 10 
(10 being highest).  Scores will be based on average response ranking 
from 5 references.  Non-responses will be given a ranking of 1.   

Bids from manufacturers lacking the U.S. installation requirements for 
US-installed retrievable systems, but meeting all technical and 
performance requirements of these specifications, may be considered by 
the District if the manufacturer provides a satisfactory five (5) year 
maintenance bond in lieu of evidence of US installation and operation.  
Maintenance bond shall be for 100 percent of the contract value of the 
equipment.  The cost of such bonding shall be included in the Base Bid 
price at the time of proposal. 

 
Delivery Schedule:   Proposed equipment will be at the job site when needed. Submittals shall 

include a schedule outlining the anticipated time to construct equipment 
and deliver to job site.  The schedule shall be broken down into 
fabrication time and delivery time.  The total time required from notice of 
selection to arrival of equipment on site shall be clearly indicated. 

 
Summary 
 
The six proposals from the four manufacturers had significantly different designs, with different types of 
diffusers, and a varying number of grids and diffusers. The proposed equipment from each manufacturer 
is summarized in Table 4. For a more detailed summary of the proposals, refer to the attached Equipment 
Summary Sheet (Exhibit C). 
 

Table 4 – Equipment Summary  
 

 Aquarius EDI OTT 
(Option 1) 

OTT 
(Option 2) 

SSI (Base 
Bid) 

SSI 
(Alternate 

Bid) 
Type of diffuser  9" Disc Panel Tube Tube Tubular  Tubular  

Number of retrievable diffuser grids 32 38 64 58 44 44 

Total number of diffusers 6160 2080 arms 1408 1276 812 Sets  812 Sets  

Total Diffuser area installed (ft^2) 2526 5491 4844 4389 3857 3857 

Diffuser membrane material  EPDM EPDM Silicone Silicone EPDM PTFE Coated 
EPDM  

Wet Weight of Grid (lbs) 5800 3810 1250 1250 ±850 ±850 

 
Despite the variation in the designs, all manufacturers generally met the design requirements. In general, 
the proposals with more diffusers had better performance. Systems with more grids weight less and 
provide more operational flexibility, but will cost more to install due to the number of connections to the 
existing air header. The evaluation ranking according to the criterion in the RFP is summarized in Table 5 
below. The total score reflects the score each for each evaluation criteria multiplied by the weight of each 
criteria, with high scores given to the systems that ranked best in each category.  
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Table 5 – Evaluation Criteria Ranking  

 

Criteria 
  

Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI 1 SSI 2 
Weight 
  Scoring Scale 1-6 

Capital Cost 5 1 2 5 6 4 3 
Performance 5 4 6 5 3 2 2 
Fabrication/ Material of Construction 5 2 2 5 5 2 5 
20-Year Life Cycle Cost 5 2 1 5.5 5.5 4 3 
Reference List 5 1.0 2.0 5.5 5.5 3.5 3.5 
Retrievability 4 1.5 1.5 5 5 3 5 
Completion of Supply 4 5 2 2 2 5 5 
Installation Requirements 3 4 2 2 2 5.5 5.5 
Delivery Schedule 3 1 6 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 
Performance Bond y/n y y y y y y 
Supply Bond y/n y y y y y y 

Total Score 91 103 174.5 169.5 134 147 
Note: combined score for each manufacturer equals 21 for each category. 

Recommendation 

All of the retrievable fine bubble diffuser equipment proposed met the requirements of the Performance-
based Specifications (RFP). The District has expressed the importance of capital cost, life cycle cost, 
performance, fabrication, and feedback from references. Based on the Criteria Ranking developed as part 
of the performance-based specifications, the following are the ranks for the equipment proposed as 
summarized in Table 5 above: 

 
 

1. OTT Option 1 
2. OTT Option 2 
3. SSI Alternate Bid 
4. SSI Base Bid 
5. EDI 
6. Aquarius 

 
OTT proposed equipment that offered the best balance of high performance, with the lowest capital cost 
and life-cycle cost. The two options provided by OTT rank very close, with Option 1 being slightly favored 
due to the higher performance outweighing the lower capital cost of Option 2. Both OTT’s options include 
silicon membranes, which is generally considered to be a superior membrane material because it is less 
susceptible to fouling than EPDM. As a result, a selection of OTT Option 1 is recommended. The 
following sections discuss the evaluation criteria and weighting parameters used to score each criteria. 
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Capital Cost (Weight = 5): 

The proposals were scored based on overall capital cost, which includes the cost for the supply bond, the 
performance bond, FOB jobsite delivery, and the manufacturer start up site services which is summarized 
in Table 6.  The overall capital cost ranges from $264,800 to $490,280. The capital cost evaluation shows 
that OTT Option 2 is about $20,000 less expensive than the next lowest bidder (OTT Option 1), while 
Aquarius has the highest capital cost by about $105,000. 
 

Table 6 – Capital Cost  
 

  Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI1 SSI2 

Equipment  $    440,000   $    372,640   $    261,450   $    241,100   $    263,625   $    306,800  

Supply Bond  $      13,200   $      11,180   $        7,400   $        7,400   $           875   $           900  

Deilvery (FOB to Jobsite)  $      15,000   Included   $        7,000   $        6,500   $      11,000   $      11,000  

Performance Bond  $      15,480   Incl. w/SB   $        9,800   $        9,800   $        5,900   $        6,500  

Start up  $        6,600   Included   Included   Included   $        5,500   $        5,500  

Total Capital Cost  $     490,280   $     383,820   $     285,650   $      264,800   $      286,900   $      330,700  

Capital Cost Score (1-6) 1 2 5 6 4 3 

 

Performance (Weight = 5): 

In evaluating the performance of the fine bubble aeration system, several parameters are interconnected, 
such as floor coverage, water depth, fine bubble formation, etc. These parameters affect the transfer 
efficiency (SOTE), which in turn affects airflow requirements and diffuser quantity. Some of these 
parameters are proprietary and are difficult to evaluate, which requires the manufacturers to provide a 
balanced design that takes into account the proprietary advantages of their system.  Even though it is not 
clear how the stated values were derived, each manufacturer is willing to provide independent testing 
data to validate their design parameters. Therefore, the parameters used were acceptable. The SOTE is 
the most important performance parameter, because it presents a fair evaluation that is independent of 
any proprietary advantages or disadvantages and will significantly impact the operational cost of the 
blowers and the plant as a whole. Since the District expects influent flow ranges of 5.5 MGD to 9.3 MGD 
for the next 20 years, the average SOTE at these treatment capacities for both the Average and 
Maximum OTRs were scored. By scoring both the Average and Maximum OTR, the SOTE counted twice 
towards the overall score. 
 
Other important parameters affecting performance are air flow rate (SCFM), operating range, and 
pressure at the point of connection. The air flow rate, which is related to the SOTE, will directly affect the 
amount of power used during aeration, and thus the average air flow (SCFM) was scored for all treatment 
capacities. Similarly, the average pressure at point of connection was scored because it will directly affect 
the amount of power used. The operating range was scored, because it represents the turndown of the 
system and will affect the ability to treat low flows without over aerating or creating potential fouling issues 
associated with low flux. The operating range was calculated by multiplying the allowable flux (SCFM/ft2) 
by the square footage of membranes installed.  
 
Other performance parameters, including total diffuser area, number of diffusers and flux are summarized 
in Table 6 below, however, these parameters were not scored because there is not a fair comparison 
between different diffuser technologies (i.e. tube vs disc). For example, much less diffuser area is 
required for disc diffusers to achieve the same SOTE as tube diffusers because tube diffusers experience 
coalition of the fine bubbles coming from the sides and bottom of tube diffusers, thus increasing bubble 
size (i.e. coarser bubbles). Many more disc diffusers are required to achieve the same SOTE as tube 
diffusers because each diffuser has a much smaller area. Due to these relationships, disc diffuser 
systems are typically designed with a higher flux than tube diffusers without a direct numerical 
relationship to the performance of the system. 
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All stated performance data listed in the manufacturer proposals was designed to meet the OTR 
requirements listed in Table 2. The proposals were ranked based on the list below and as summarized in 
Table 7. The highest performance for each category is highlighted in green (where applicable), and 
scores are shown in parenthesis for parameters which were scored. The scores are totalized at the 
bottom to determine the overall score each system received.  

SOTEs within 0.5% of the higher SOTE were scored the same.  For example, in a situation where the 
SOTEs are 31%, 31.5%, and 32%.  32% and 31.5% are scored the same, while 31% will be scored 
lower. Similarly, pressures within 0.1 psi were scored the same, because even though 0.1 psi represents 
less than a 5% difference in total pressure, it will lead to significantly higher operational cost over the 
lifespan of the system. Other performance parameters within 5% of the best received the same score. For 
example, if three manufacturers had SCFMs of 4000, 4150, and 4300 the 4000 and 4150 would receive 
the same score because the difference is less than 5%, but the 4300 SCFM would receive a lower score, 
because it is more than 5% above 4000 SCFM.  

 
Table 7 – Performance Parameters 

 
  Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI1 SSI2 

Fine Bubble Diffuser Type Disc Tube        Tube        Tube        Tube        Tube        

SOTE % – 5.5 MGD, Avg OTR 1 32.38% 34.37% 36.60% 35.20% 29.30% 29.50% 

SOTE % – 5.5 MGD, Max OTR 1 30.43% 32.20% 33.00% 31.70% 28.90% 29.00% 

SOTE % – 6.8 MGD, Avg OTR 1 31.75% 33.70% 35.50% 34.10% 29.00% 29.20% 

SOTE % – 6.8 MGD, Max OTR 1 29.93% 31.60% 32.10% 30.70% 28.80% 29.00% 

SOTE % – 7.5 MGD, Avg OTR 1 31.30% 33.14% 34.70% 33.30% 28.90% 28.00% 

SOTE % – 7.5 MGD, Max OTR 1 29.61% 31.30% 31.50% 30.10% 27.90% 29.00% 

SOTE % – 9.3 MGD, Avg OTR 1 30.41% 32.10% 33.00% 31.70% 26.00% 26.10% 

SOTE % – 9.3 MGD, Max OTR 1 28.89% 30.40% 30.80% 28.60% 25.80% 26.00% 

SOTE % – 12 MGD, Avg OTR 28.88% 30.43% 30.00% 28.60% 24.90% 25.00% 

SOTE % – 12 MGD, Max OTR 28.16% 29.60% 27.10% 24.20% 24.80% 24.90% 
Avg SOTE % – 5.5 MGD-9.3 MGD, Avg 
OTR 

31.46% 
(3.0) 

33.33% 
(4.5) 

34.95% 
(6.0) 

33.58% 
(4.5) 

28.30% 
(1.5) 

28.20% 
(1.5) 

Avg SOTE % – 5.5 MGD-9.3 MGD, Max 
OTR 

29.72% 
(3.5) 

31.38% 
(5.5) 

31.85% 
(5.5) 

30.28% 
(3.5) 

27.85% 
(1.5) 

28.25% 
(1.5) 

Total Diffuser Area Installed (ft2) 2 2526 5491 4844 4389 3857 3857 

Number of Diffusers 2 6160 2080 1408 1276 812 812 
Average SCFM at Avg OTR Condition 
(All flows) 2 4295 4061.8 3861 4030 4709.4 4685.8 

Average SCFM at Max OTR Condition 
(All flows) 2 6495.4 6035.2 6057.4 6342.4 6998.4 6963.4 

Average SCFM at Avg & Max OTR  (All 
flows) 

5395.2 
(3.0) 

5048.5 
(5.0) 

4959.2 
(5.0) 

5186.2 
(5.0) 

5853.9 
(1.5) 

5824.6 
(1.5) 

Average Flux at Avg OTR Condition (All 
flows) 2 2.293 0.924 1.020 1.208 1.501 1.491 

Average Flux at Max OTR Condition (All 
flows) 2 3.473 1.376 1.600 1.904 1.813 1.801 

Operating Flux Range (SCFM/ft2)4 1.22-9.75 
(4.0) 

0-6 
(6.0) 

0.29-4.11 
(5.0) 

0.29-4.11 
(3.0) 

0.73-3.15 
(1.5) 

0.73-3.15 
(1.5) 

Average Pressure at Point of 
Connection 3 

6.334 
(6.0) 

6.53 
(4.0) 

6.64 
(1.5) 

6.67 
(1.5) 

6.55 
(4.0) 

6.534 
(4.0) 

Total Score 20.5 25.0 22.0 17.5 10.0 10.0 

Total Performance Score 4.0 6.0 5.0 3.0 1.5 1.5 
1 Average SOTE from 5.5-9.3 MGD scored for Average and Maximum Conditions 
2 Parameter not scored 
3 Pressures within 0.1 psi scored the same 
4 Operating range scored by multiplying flux range by total diffuser membrane area  
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OTT’s fine bubble tube aeration system provides the highest average SOTE, especially in the critical flow 
range of 5.5-9.3 MGD, where the WWTP is expected to operate in the next 20 years. EDI had the second 
best SOTE and performed well at the high end of the spectrum (i.e. high flow and/or Max OTR). Aquarius 
ranked solidly in the middle of the pack, and SSI had the lowest SOTE of the proposed systems.   
 
Overall, EDI was scored the highest, due to the high SOTE, low SCFM requirements, high flux range, and 
low pressure requirements. OTT’s Option 1 was scored the second highest, due to the high SOTE and 
Low SCFM requirements, and relatively high operating range, but this option lost some points due to the 
high pressure requirement. OTT’s Option 2 was scored third and was similar to their Option 1, but with 
lower SOTE and higher SCFM. Aquarius had excellent pressure requirements and a good operating 
range, but was scored fourth due to the lower SOTE and higher SCFM requirements. SSI’s Base Bid and 
Alternate Bid both had the fewest number of diffusers, lowest operating range, lowest SOTE and highest 
SCFM requirements, which led to them being scored last in this criteria. 
 

Fabrication and Material of Construction (Weight = 4): 

The proposals were ranked based on fabrication, including material of construction and ancillary 
equipment.  All the equipment proposed is fabricated with similar materials and meet the requirements 
detailed in the Performance Specifications. All manufacturers supplied stainless steel fasteners and 
anchor bolts for the supplied air distribution piping supports.  
 
The systems proposed by Aquarius use solvent weld connections for the connection of the PVC diffuser 
saddle to the PVC air distribution header. The EDI, OTT and SSI designs each use a mechanical type 
connection to attach the diffuser saddle to the air distribution header.  
 
Each fabrication type has its advantages and disadvantages. The solvent welded type connections allow 
for a strong bond of the diffuser saddle to be made with the air distribution header, whereas the 
mechanical saddle type proposed solutions may become loose or brittle due to thermal expanding and 
contracting differences associated with different materials in contact with one another. The mechanical 
type connections do have an advantage in the event that a diffuser assembly is damaged; it may be 
replaced quickly without having to cut an entire section of pipe out to replace, which would need to be 
done for a solvent welded connection system.. The connection of the diffusers to the headers are 
considered to have equally weighted advantages and disadvantages, thus this criterion was scored 
primarily on the type of material for the diffuser membrane and frame material.  
 
It was reported by tube diffuser references (both SSI and OTT) that rags caused the diffusers to break off 
during retrieval. This was, however, not given much weight, because the references noted that they had 
poor primary treatment that need upgrading. Since Tapia has screening followed by primary 
sedimentation, this issue is mostly likely not applicable to this project. 
 
Aquarius, and EDI, and SSI (Base Bid) proposed diffuser systems using EPDM for the diffuser membrane 
material and plastic material for the diffuser mount. SSI (Alternate Bid) proposed a diffuser system using 
PTFE coated EPDM membranes, whereas OTT proposed Silicon membranes. Although EPDM is widely 
used as a membrane material, Silicon and PTFE coated membranes are considered to be higher quality 
membrane materials with a greater resistance to fouling. Therefore, OTT and EDI received higher scores 
for this evaluation criterion. It should be noted that the advantages related to fouling are largely 
dependent on the quality of the water that the membranes are installed in. 
 
OTT and SSI Alternate bid received the highest score because of the membrane material and because 
their grids are constructed of a stainless steel frame, which is more corrosion resistant than coated 
carbon steel. Aquarius, EDI, and SSI (Base Bid) all received the same score, as they all had the same 
material. EDI’s frame is stainless steel, but their ballasts are concrete. The concrete ballasts are subject 
to chipping if bumped upon removal, and are considered less robust than steel systems. Therefore, the 
advantages and disadvantages of EDI’s system effectively canceled each other out. The Fabrication and 
Material of Construction scores are summarized in Table 8. 
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Table 8 – Fabrication and Material of Construction 

 
  Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI1 SSI2 

Fabrication Score 2 2 5 5 2 5 
 

20-year Life Cycle Cost (Weight = 5): 

The proposals were scored based on the 20-year life cycle cost (LCC), which is summarized in Table 9. 
The 20-year life cycle cost includes capital cost, operation and maintenance (O&M) cost, and power cost 
for 20 years at an assumed 5% interest rate per year. The O&M cost is separated into cost of 
replacement parts, and cost of operator labor. Crane costs are not included in this evaluation. 

O&M Costs 

The maintenance hours were based on the percent of recommended diffuser replacement and the type of 
diffuser. The following Assumptions were made: 

 Minimum 10% Diffuser Replacement (All manufacturers used 10%, except EDI who 
recommended 14%). 

o Each tube diffuser set takes 4 minutes to replace, each disc diffuser takes 1 minute to 
replace. 

o Each tube diffuser set takes 4 minutes to clean, each disc diffuser takes 1 minute to 
clean. 

 Each grid under 1,500 lbs takes two operators 1 hour to retrieve and 1 hour to reinstall (OTT & 
SSI). Each grid over 1,500 lbs takes two operators 1.5 hours to retrieve and 1.5 hours to reinstall 
(Aquarius & EDI). 

 Operator labor is $42/hour. 
 Every grid will be removed and replaced each year. 

o During yearly removal, 10-14% of the diffusers will be replaced and the rest will be 
cleaned, based on manufacturer recommendation. 

 
Table 9 – Yearly Parts and Labor Cost 

 

Task Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI1 SSI2 

Number of Diffusers 6160 2080 1408 1276 812 812 

Replacement Rate 10% 14.3% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

Cost per Diffuser $5.00 $63.00 $18.00 $18.00 $19.90 $25.25 

Sub-Total Parts $3,080 $18,739 $2,534 $2,297 $1,616 $2,050 

Number of Grids 32  38  64  58  44  44  

Retrieve and Reinstall Grids (Man-hrs) 192 228 256 232 176 176 

Replace Diffusers (Man-hrs) 10 20 9 9 5 5 

Clean Diffusers (Man-hrs) 92.4 59.4 84.5 76.6 48.7 48.7 

Cost per Man-hr $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 $42.00 

Sub-Total Labor $12,365 $12,912 $14,678 $13,338 $9,648 $9,648 

Yearly Parts & Labor Costs $15,445 $31,650 $17,213 $15,634 $11,264 $11,699 
1 EDI has 2080 diffuser arms, but 1040 sets of two diffuser arms. 1040 diffusers was used to calculate EDI’s cleaning & 

replacement time. Other tube diffuser manufacturers listed the sets of tube diffusers 
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Power Costs 
The power cost was calculated based on the average required SCFM from the manufacturers and the 
average operating pressure. These parameters were used to determine the average running blower 
horsepower dedicated to the aeration basins, as shown in Table 10. Blower horsepower for other 
demands (channel mixing, grit, RAS re-aeration, etc.) was not used in this calculation, except to 
determine the average operating pressure based on headloss of the system. The required blower 
horsepower was based on the following assumptions: 
 

 Average Aeration SCFM required (provided by manufacturers) 
 ICFM = Inlet air flow = 37*(460 + Temp°F) * Wa / (100*Inlet Pressure - RH*Saturated Water 

Pressure, psia), Wa = equivalent weight of dry air, RH = Relative Humidity 
 Operating Pressure = Pressure required by manufacturers at diffusers grids + Pressure due to 

headloss in aeration piping.  
 Site elevation 490 feet MSL 
 Average Temperature 70 °F 
 Average Relative Humidity 65% 
 Overall blower efficiency of 72%. 

Table 10 – Blower Power Usage 
 

Company Flow 
(MGD) 

Design 
SCFM 

Discharge 
Pressure 

(psig) 
ICFM Calculated 

hp 
Calculated 

kW 

Aquarius 6.8 3,178 6.25 3281 108.7 81.07 
Aquarius 7.5 3,603 6.26 3751 124.5 92.82 
Aquarius 9.3 4,663 6.3 4854 162.0 120.81 

EDI 6.8 2,937 6.51 3058 105.0 78.32 
EDI 7.5 3,3451 6.51 3482 119.6 89.20 
EDI 9.3 4,322 6.52 4499 154.8 115.42 

OTT Option 1 6.8 2,766 6.61 2880 100.3 74.76 
OTT Option 1 7.5 3,163 6.61 3293 114.6 85.49 
OTT Option 1 9.3 4,178 6.62 4350 151.6 113.07 
OTT Option 2 6.8 2,878 6.61 2996 104.3 77.79 
OTT Option 2 7.5 3,294 6.61 3429 119.4 89.03 
OTT Option 2 9.3 4,359 6.62 4538 158.2 117.97 
SSI Base Bid 6.8 3,365 6.47 3503 119.7 89.25 
SSI Base Bid 7.5 3,777 6.48 3932 134.5 100.32 
SSI Base Bid 9.3 5,272 6.51 5488 188.5 140.59 
SSI Alt Bid 6.8 3,348 6.45 3485 118.8 88.56 
SSI Alt Bid 7.5 3,758 6.47 3912 133.7 99.68 
SSI Alt Bid 9.3 5,248 6.49 5463 187.2 139.58 

 
Based on this calculation, the average running horsepower was between 100-hp to 200-hp for the 
aeration demands, depending on the flow rate and the manufacturer. Using the kilowatt value calculated 
in the above, the average power cost to run the blowers shown in Table 11 was determined based on the 
following assumptions: 
 

 Assumed average flow: 
o Year 1 flow is 6.8 MGD, which gradually increases to 7.5 MGD by year 5. Flow then 

gradually increases to 9.8 MGD by year 20. 
 $0.098/kWh 
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Table 11 – Blower Power Costs 
 

Year Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI1 SSI2 
1 $69,601  $67,240  $64,179  $66,778  $76,621  $76,027  
2 $72,123  $69,575  $66,482  $69,191  $78,996  $78,413  
3 $74,644  $71,910  $68,785  $71,604  $81,371  $80,798  
4 $77,166  $74,245  $71,088  $74,017  $83,745  $83,184  
5 $79,688  $76,580  $73,391  $76,430  $86,120  $85,570  
6 $81,289  $78,080  $74,970  $78,087  $88,425  $87,854  
7 $82,891  $79,581  $76,548  $79,743  $90,730  $90,137  
8 $84,493  $81,081  $78,127  $81,400  $93,035  $92,421  
9 $86,094  $82,581  $79,705  $83,056  $95,340  $94,704  

10 $87,696  $84,081  $81,284  $84,712  $97,646  $96,988  
11 $89,298  $85,581  $82,863  $86,369  $99,951  $99,271  
12 $90,900  $87,081  $84,441  $88,025  $102,256  $101,555  
13 $92,501  $88,581  $86,020  $89,681  $104,561  $103,838  
14 $94,103  $90,081  $87,599  $91,338  $106,866  $106,122  
15 $95,705  $91,581  $89,177  $92,994  $109,171  $108,405  
16 $97,306  $93,081  $90,756  $94,651  $111,476  $110,689  
17 $98,908  $94,581  $92,335  $96,307  $113,782  $112,972  
18 $100,510  $96,081  $93,913  $97,963  $116,087  $115,256  
19 $102,112  $97,581  $95,492  $99,620  $118,392  $117,539  
20 $103,713  $99,082  $97,071  $101,276  $120,697  $119,823  

Average $88,037  $84,413  $81,711  $85,162  $98,763  $98,078  
 
The power cost to run the blowers is affected by the fine bubble diffuser system, however, there is a 
“base cost” to run the blowers regardless of which system is installed. If the full power cost is used, the 
power cost represents over 70% of the 20-year LCC. In order to not dilute the LCC, the base cost was 
removed from the yearly electrical cost. This was done by subtracting the lowest power cost from each 
vendor. For example, at Year 1 the power cost used are: 
 

 OTT Option 1:  $0 
 OTT Option 2:  $2,599 
 Aquarius:  $5,422 
 SSI Alt Bid: $11,847 
 EDI:  $12,126 
 SSI Base Bid:  $12,442 

 
Detailed LCC calculations are included in the Appendix. A summary of the total LCC is shown in Table 12 
using a 5% interest rate to determine the net present value (NPV) of each system. 
 

Table 12 – 20 Year Life Cycle Cost Summary 
 

  Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI1 SSI2 
Capital Cost $490,280 $383,820 $285,650 $264,800 $286,900 $330,700 
Yearly O&M Cost $15,456 $31,643 $17,229 $15,614 $11,281 $11,716 
Average Yearly Power Cost (Additional)1 $6,326 $2,702 $0 $3,451 $17,052 $16,367 
20-Year LCC (NPV) $760,711 $813,083 $500,359 $500,745 $607,268 $642,866 
Score (1-6) 2.0 1.0 5.5 5.5 4.0 3.0 

1 Additional power cost calculated by subtracting the lowest power cost from the total power cost. 
 
As shown above, OTT has the lowest 20 year life cycle cost due to the low capital cost and low power 
cost. The 20 year cost for both options is about the same, with Option 2 saving upfront (capital cost) but 
costing slightly more per year due to the higher aeration requirement. SSI’s proposals had the second 
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best life cycle costs, due to the relatively low capital cost and low O&M costs. Both systems proposed by 
SSI have the fewest number of diffusers, which equates to low capital cost and low cost of 
replacement/cleaning, but the highest electrical costs. SSI’s Option 1 had a lower life cycle cost than 
Option 2 due to the lower capital cost for the less expensive diffuser and lifting frame materials. 
 
Aquarius came in fifth in the life-cycle costs, mostly because they had the highest capital cost. EDI came 
in last in the life-cycle cost evaluation, mostly because of the high yearly O&M cost associated with 
replacing 14.4% of the diffusers, compare to 10% by all other manufacturers. 

Reference List (Weight = 5): 

The proposals were scored based on references provided by the manufacturers from previous projects. 
Each vendor was asked to provide a minimum of 5 references, two of which had to be retrievable 
systems, up to 10 references. The references were contacted a maximum of three times each, until either 
five references were reached, or all ten references had been contacted three times. Questionnaires were 
filled out from each responsive reference, with the most important question being the overall satisfaction 
with the system from 1-10. The overall satisfaction scores from the first five responsive references were 
used to rank the manufacturers. 
 
Of all the manufacturers, OTT and SSI had 5 responsive references, while EDI had three and Aquarius 
had one. It should be noted that Aquarius had two additional responses, but one was from a person who 
stated he sells Aquarius Diffusers, and one was from a design engineer. Since these references did not 
meet the requirements (were not owners, operators, or engineers of a plant with the equipment), they 
were scored as a zero. The completed surveys are included in the Appendix, and the scores are 
summarized in Table 13 below. 
 

Table 3 – Reference List 
 

  Aquarius EDI OTT 1 OTT 2 SSI 1 SSI 2 

 Reference 1 9 9 10 10 5 5 

Reference 2 0 7 9 9 8 8 

Reference 3 0 7 10 10 8 8 

Reference 4 0 0 8.5 8.5 8 8 

Reference 5 0 0 10 10 10 10 

Average 1.8 4.6 9.5 9.5 7.8 7.8 

Reference Score 1.0 2.0 5.5 5.5 3.5 3.5 

 
 
Almost all of the references scored the aeration equipment well and were generally satisfied with their 
diffuser systems. OTT received the highest score in this category, because they had five responses who 
all scored the equipment very well (8.5-10). SSI scored second, mostly because five of their references 
were responsive. EDI and Aquarius scored the lowest, because several of their references were either 
unresponsive or in the case of Aquarius did not meet the require criteria. 

Retrievability (Weight = 4): 

The proposals were ranked based on the retrievability requirements of the system. The weight of the 
grids was considered the most important parameter, because due to the large distance from the crane to 
the furthest grid, a much larger and more costly rental crane is required for systems with higher weight. 
Other parameters that were considered were the height from the base of the grid to the crane pick point, 
the presence or absence of guide rails, number of grids, and ballast material. A low overall height from 
the base of the grid to the crane pick point will require a smaller crane, and especially makes a difference 
if an A-frame crane is used. Guide rails are helpful to ensure that the grids are lowered into the same spot 
every time, and allow for a smoother placement of the grids. The number of grids is important, because 
the overall time to retrieve and replace the entire system is higher as the number of grids goes up. 
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Overall SSI’s Alternate Bid was scored the highest, because the grids had the lowest weight (850 lbs per 
grid), the system included guide rails, the high requirement from the base of the grid to the pick point was 
low (17-feet), and there was a moderate-to-low number of grids (44). 
 
OTT’s Option 1 and 2, and SSI’s alternate bid were all scored second highest. OTT’s systems had the 
advantages of weight (1,250 lbs per grid) and guide rails, but had the most grids (58 and 64, respectively) 
and had a high height requirement from the base of the grid to the pick point (~28-feet). SSI’s alternate 
bid had the advantage of lowest weight (850 lbs per grid) and relatively small number of grids (44), but did 
not include guide rails and had a high height requirement (28-feet). 
 
Aquarius and EDI were both scored lowest, mostly because of the high weight requirements. Aquarius 
had an extremely high weight per grid (5,800 lbs), but did however, have advantages of guide rails and 
low height requirement from the base to the pick point (17’). EDI had a relatively high weight of 3,810 lbs 
per grid, and was also scored lower because of the lack of guide rails, concrete ballast beams, and high 
height requirement (29’) from the base of the grid to the pick point. EDI and Aquarius both had the 
advantages of low number of grids (38 for EDI and 32 for Aquarius). The retrievability scores are 
summarized in Table 14 below. 
 

 
Table 14 – Retrievability 

 
  Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI Base SSI Alt 

Weight (lbs)               
5,800  

            
3,810  

           
1,250  

           
1,250  ±850 ±850 

Height from base to crane 
attachment 17' 29' 28' 28' 28 17 

Ballast Type & Material Epoxy 
Coated Steel 

Concrete 
Beam  

CS RODS 
/304 SS 

CS RODS/ 
304 SS 

C Channel with 
Epoxy Coated 

304SS tube with 
CS/MS BAR  

Guide Rails Yes No Yes Yes No  Yes 

Number of Grids 32 38 64 58 44 44 

Retrievability Score (1-6) 1.5 1.5 5.0 5.0 3.0 5.0 

 

Completion of Supply (Weight = 4): 

The proposals were ranked based on the completion of supply. All of the manufacturers proposed to 
provide equipment for a complete and fully operational fine bubble diffuser aeration system within the 
ditches, (air supply and main air delivery piping provided by others). Each proposal generally meets the 
performance specification requirements for the aeration process with the following exclusions.  
 
EDI Exclusions 

1. Did not provide detailed dimension drawings – drawings provided were not project specific. 
2. Diffuser size, pipe size and material were not clearly shown in proposal. 
3. Ballast beams are by others (the Contractor), all other manufacturers provide the ballast beams. 

 
 
OTT Exclusions 

1. Did not include layout drawings in initial proposal (layout drawings were later received). 
2. Exhibit C was not completed initially. 
3. Flexible connections are by others (the Contractor), all other manufacturers provided the flexible 

connection. 
 
Based on the exclusions, EDI and OTT (both options) were ranked lower than the other manufactures, as 
summarized in Table 14. 
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Table 14 – Completion of Supply 
 

  Aquarius EDI OTT1 OTT2 SSI1 SSI2 
Completion of 
Supply Score 5 2 2 2 5 5 

 

Installation Requirements (Weight = 3): 

The proposals were ranked based on the requirements to install the proposed diffuser equipment within 
the existing aeration basins. All manufacturers, provided designs that can be easily inserted into the 
existing basins.  
 
The evaluation of the installation requirements also considers the design and layout of the diffuser 
systems, the quantity of installed diffusers, as well as the design of the retrievable system, as 
summarized in Table 15. OTT has by far the highest number of grids (64 & 58), which requires the most 
process connections, and will require a significant amount of field welding at the connections to all the 
grids. Aquarius has a small number of grids, but a high number of diffusers compared to the diffuser arm 
systems.  
Aquarius and Sanitaire provided lifting systems with rigid components, whereas EDI and OTT provided 
systems using a stainless steel wire lifting harnesses. No preference was given to rigid vs flexible lifting 
systems, because each system is adequate. However, manufactures requiring a lifting crossbeam were 
scored slightly lower. The lifting crossbeam distributes the load from the diffuser grid to the crane and 
increases the number of connections between the grids and the crane. 
 

Table 15 –Diffuser Assemblies Installation  
 

 Aquarius EDI OTT 1 OTT 2 SSI 1 SSI 2 
Number of 

Removable Grids 32 38 64 58 36 36 

Number of 
Diffusers 6,160 2,080 1,408 (sets) 1,276 (sets) 812 Sets 812 Sets 

Grid Weight (lbs) 5,800 3,810 1,250 1,250 850 850 

Equipment by 
Others (Y/N) N Y Y Y N N 

Score 4 2 2 2 5.5 5.5 

 
Based on the proposed layouts, SSI received the highest scores due to the low number of grids and 
diffusers, and the low weight per grid. Aquarius was scored second highest because they have the lowest 
number of grids, and have no equipment that is supplied by others. OTT (both options) and EDI were 
scored the lowest; OTT because of the high number of grids, and EDI because of the significant amount 
of equipment by others (i.e. concrete ballast beams and spreader bar). 

Delivery Schedule (Weight = 3): 

Delivery schedule was based on two durations provided in the proposals: fabrication schedule and 
delivery schedule. Fabrication schedule is the time needed to finalize the submittals and manufacture the 
system. The delivery schedule includes the duration of the delivery from the place of manufacturing to the 
jobsite.  The results from the proposals are summarized in Table 16. EDI had the quickest delivery 
schedule by a pretty wide margin, and was thus scored the highest. The other manufacturers were all 
score the same because their schedules were within 1 week, and showed a variance of 2 or more weeks. 
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Table 16 – Fabrication and Delivery Schedules  
 

Delivery Schedule Aquarius EDI OTT 1 OTT 2 SSI 1 SSI 2 
Fabrication Schedule 12-14 1 8-10 8-10 8-16 8-16 
Delivery Schedule 1 8 4 4 1 1 
Total Delivery Time from Approved Submittal 14 9 13 13 13 13 
Score 1 6 3 3 3 3 

 

Performance Bond (Weight = y/n): 

The proposals were ranked on willingness to agree to the Performance Bond provided by PACE ensuring 
the procurement of supplies and services on the basis of direct labor hours at specified fixed hourly rates 
and material at cost.  All manufacturers agreed to a performance bond.  

Supply Bond (Weight = y/n): 

The proposals were ranked on willingness to agree to the Supply Bond provided by PACE. The Supply 
Bond guarantees the manufacturer will supply all equipment and materials as contracted. Should the 
manufacturer default, the Surety will compensate the contractor for costs and damages incurred. The 
provided Supply Bond can be seen in the attachments (Exhibit A). All manufacturers, provided a 
statement that a Supply Bond would be furnished, provided the contract was awarded to them. 
 
Attachments 
 

A. Equipment Summary Sheet (Exhibit C, All Manufacturers)  
B. LCC Calculations 
C. Original RFP 
D. Aquarius Technologies, Inc. abbreviated proposal 
E. Environmental Dynamics International abbreviated proposal 
F. OTT abbreviated proposal (Option 1 & 2) 
G. SSI abbreviated proposal (Base Bid) 
H. SSI abbreviated proposal (Alternate Bid) 
I. Reference Questionnaires  
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ITEM 6B

December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Facilities & Operations

Subject : Rancho Las Virgenes Composting Facility: Biofilter Maintenance

SUMMARY:

The biofilters at the Rancho Las Virgenes Composting Facility require periodic replacement
of the wood chip media to meet air quality permit requirements.  Biofiltration uses the wood
chip media as a substrate for organisms, which remove ammonia and volatile organic
compounds from the foul air generated by the composting process.  The media breaks down
over time and needs to be replaced. 

On October 4, 2017, a request for quotations for the supply of biofilter media was placed on
the LVMWD website.  No quotations were received by the due date, so staff contacted
Viramontes Express, the firm that has previously supplied the media.  A quotation, in the
amount of $84,204.80, was received for supply of new biofilter media and removal of the
spent media. 

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to issue a purchase order to Viramontes
Express, in the amount of $84,204.80, for the supply of new biofilter media and the removal
and disposal of the spent media.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Yes

ITEM BUDGETED:

Yes

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds are available in the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 JPA Budget for this work. 
No additional appropriation is required.

Prepared by:  Brett Dingman, Water Reclamation Manager
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ITEM 6C

December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Facilities & Operations

Subject : Tapia Water Reclamation Facility Fiscal Year 2017-18 Rehabilitation
Project: Award of Design Contract

SUMMARY:

A request for proposals (RFP) for design of the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility (Tapia)
Fiscal Year 2017-18 Rehabilitation Project was released on October 9, 2017.  The scope
includes a compilation of the work planned through three budgeted capital improvement
projects including replacing deteriorated grit and skimmings piping, replacing slide gates for
Channel No. 4 of the secondary sedimentation basins and rehabilitating Primary Clarifier Nos.
4 and 5. 

On July 27, 2017, the Administering Agent/General Manager approved a professional
services agreement with CSI Services Inc., in the amount of $4,995, to perform an inspection
of Primary Clarifier Nos. 4 and 5, document the conditions and assist with developing the
scope of the rehabilitation work.  The inspection report was included as an appendix to the
RFP for design.  On November 1, 2017, four proposals were received; staff recommends the
Board accept the proposal from Cannon for the project.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Accept the proposal from Cannon, and authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to
execute a professional services agreement, in the amount of $55,404, for engineering design
and design support during construction for the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility Fiscal Year
2017-18 Rehabilitation Project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Yes

ITEM BUDGETED:

Yes

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

82



Sufficient funds are available in the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 JPA Budget.  No
additional appropriation is required.  The cost of the project will be allocated 70.6% to
LVMWD and 29.4% to Triunfo Sanitation District.

DISCUSSION:

The Tapia Water Reclamation Facility Fiscal Year 2017-18 Rehabilitation Project involves
replacement or rehabilitation of equipment in three different areas of Tapia: (1) rehabilitation of
Primary Clarifier Nos. 4 and 5, (2) replacement of grit and skimmings piping, and (3)
replacement of slide gates for Channel No. 4 of the secondary sedimentation basin.  These
three work items were originally planned and budgeted as three separate capital improvement
projects; however, staff recommended the work be combined into one project to provide a
cost savings on design, bidding and construction.  In addition, the work will require carefully
phased construction between the three work areas to avoid impacting treatment operations. 
By having one contractor complete all of the work, staff can better control and specify the
phasing of work.
 
The first work item incorporated into the project is the rehabilitation of Primary Clarifier Nos.
4 and 5.  Primary sedimentation at Tapia is accomplished using five concrete, rectangular
sedimentation tanks that are approximately 125 feet long, 20 feet wide, and 12 feet deep. 
Over time, the concrete in and around the primary clarifiers vapor space (the upper +/- 3 feet)
has deteriorated due to exposure to gas from the influent wastewater.  Concrete spalling has
been observed in several places on the clarifier deck, and inspection of the tank interior
revealed locations of weakened concrete.  To date, the rehabilitation work has occurred in
phases to accommodate normal wastewater treatment operations.  The first phase involved
the rehabilitation of Primary Clarifier No. 1 in November 2014.  The second phase was the
rehabilitation of Primary Clarifier Nos. 2 and 3 in February 2017.  The proposed project
would complete the third and final phase, which would rehabilitate Primary Clarifier Nos. 4 and
5.  Phasing the rehabilitation work has allowed for lessons learned to be incorporated into the
design to streamline construction and reduce the potential for change orders.
 
The second work item incorporated into the project is the rehabilitation of the grit and
skimmings piping.  Grit and skimmings piping, both from the headworks’ grit channels and the
primary sedimentation basins, has exceeded its useful service life and requires replacement. 
The existing piping is above-ground, secured on adjacent concrete walls and structures,
ranges in size from 4 to 8 inches and is constructed primarily of glass fused steel.  Repeated
repairs have been required due to the age and condition of the pipe.
 
The third work item incorporated into the project is the rehabilitation of the secondary effluent
slide gates for Channel No. 4.  The gates return the activated sludge from the secondary
sedimentation basins to the reaeration basins and then to the return activated sludge pumps. 
Hydraulic head pushes the sludge into Channel No. 4 through two pipes in each secondary
effluent gate (one mounted inside and one outside).  The gates are constructed of aluminum
and bolted to aluminum boxes, which are supported by a bracket system attached to the walls
of the channel.  The gates control the flow of the sludge from the secondary sedimentation
basins into Channel No. 4.  Due to the corrosive environment, the aluminum gates and boxes
have deteriorated and require replacement.
 
On November 1, 2017, the following four proposals were received:
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Design Firm Fee
Proposal Total Hours

HDR $129,904 719
PACE $66,705 492

CANNON $55,404 326
KEH $132,824 796

 
Upon review of the proposals, staff determined that the Cannon team provided the best value
when considering cost among other factors.  HDR and KEH both provided sufficient
proposals to complete the design; however, both consultants' proposals included significantly
more design hours than Cannon and PACE, increasing the overall cost substantially. 
Additional costs were attributed to items such as a preliminary design report, 50% submittal
and subconsultants, which were not required by the RFP.  Although these additions could add
value to the project, staff believes the nature of the work does not warrant the significant added
cost.
 
In an effort to reduce the design cost and time required, staff circulated the RFP with
attachments including similar plans and specifications from closely
related projects.  This project entails mostly maintenance type work (removal and
replacement), which understandably requires less design time than new construction. 
 
Cannon has successfully worked with staff on several projects, including both the Jed Smith
Pipeline Replacement Project and the interconnection project with Calleguas Municipal Water
District Project.  Overall, staff has been very satisfied with Cannon's performance and work
products.

GOALS:

Construct, Manage and Maintain All Facilities and Provide Services to Assure System
Reliability and Environmental Compatibility

Prepared by:  Coleman Olinger, P.E., Associate Engineer

ATTACHMENTS:
Descr ipt ion

Cannon Proposal
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ITEM 6D

December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Facilities & Operations

Subject : Tapia Primary Clarifier Sludge Collection System Drives: Award

SUMMARY:

As part of the on-going maintenance of the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility (Tapia),
equipment is considered for replacement when it reaches the end of its service life.  The
drives for the sludge collection system, which move the flights in the primary clarifiers, have
reached the end of their useful life and are in need of replacement.  The drives for the primary
clarifier sludge collection system are at least 30 years old, have become obsolete and
are labor-intensive to repair. 

Staff requested quotations from two authorized vendors that provide new drive equipment for
the Polychem sludge collection system used in the primary clarifiers.  The quotation provided
by the Frost Company included the drives and installation, while the quotation from Gierlich-
Mitchell only included the drives.  Staff recommends issuing a purchase order to the Frost
Company for the purchase and authorized-vendor installation.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to issue a purchase order to the Frost
Company, in the amount of $67,146.00, for the purchase and installation of new drive units for
the primary clarifiers at the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Yes

ITEM BUDGETED:

Yes

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds are available in the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 JPA Budget for this project. 
The cost of the work will be allocated 70.6% to LVMWD and 29.4% to Triunfo Sanitation
District.

110



DISCUSSION:

The drives for the primary clarifier sludge collection system at Tapia have reached the end of
their useful life and are in need of replacement.  Two of the primary clarifiers were constructed
in 1970, another was built in 1979 and the remaining two were constructed in 1987.  The
drives for each of these clarifiers are at least 30 years old and have become obsolete.  The
drives for the secondary clarifier sludge collection system were replaced with SEW
Eurodrives through a prior capital project. 

One of the valuable features included with the new drive system for secondary clarifiers was
the Bibbigard torque limiter, which allows for the drive to be automatically disengaged from the
motor on high torque and easily reset by pushing the shaft back into place.  The existing drives
in the primary clarifiers contain shear pins that break on high torque and need to be
replaced for the drive to be put back in service.  Replacing the shear pins is a labor-intensive
task. 

Staff requested quotations from the two vendors that are authorized to provide SEW
Eurodrives and the Bibbigard torque limiter for the Polychem sludge collection system at
Tapia.  The quotation provided by the Frost Company included the materials and installation,
while the quotation from Gierlich-Mitchell only included materials.  Following is a summary of
the quotes:

Frost Company  $67,146 ($41,646 for materials and $25,500 for installation)
Gierlich-Mitchell        $57,158 (materials only)

Having the drives installed by an authorized vendor is preferable to ensure that manufacturer's
installation requirements are met.  Staff recommends issuing a purchase order to the Frost
Company for the purchase and authorized-vendor installation.

Prepared by:  Brett Dingman, Water Reclamation Manager
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ITEM 6E

December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Resource Conservation & Public Outreach

Subject : Rancho Las Virgenes Farm Sprayfields Operation and Maintenance:
Renewal of Agreement

SUMMARY:

For the past eight years, the JPA Board has authorized the Administering Agent/General
Manager to execute one-year contracts with W. Litten, Inc., in annual amounts not to exceed
$250,000, for the operation and maintenance of the JPA's Rancho Las Virgenes Farm
Sprayfields (Farm).  Litten provides effluent disposal services at the Farm as required by the
NPDES permit for the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility.  Services also include planting and
harvesting of crops for nutrient removal as required by Part 503 of the EPA Biosolids Rule,
management of the irrigation system for the sprayfields, maintenance of catch basins to
prevent off-site runoff and general upkeep of the facility.  Additionally, Litten performs
maintenance and weed abatement services at other JPA facilities, as needed.

In 2017, Litten's contract expense was approximately $220,808, or 12% below the budgeted
amount of $250,000.  Litten has consistently provided the services within the budgeted
amount, although the work varies from year-to-year based on the volume of effluent disposal
needed, demand for recycled water, weather conditions and needed maintenance at the
Farm.  Last year, although labor and equipment costs increased by 17%, expenses stayed
below the budgeted amount.  As a result, staff recommends renewing the agreement with
Litten.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Authorize the Administering Agent/General Manager to execute a one-year agreement with W.
Litten, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $250,000, for the operation and maintenance of the
Rancho Las Virgenes Farm Sprayfields.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Yes

ITEM BUDGETED:

Yes
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FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The total cost of the work is not expected to exceed $250,000.  Sufficient funds for the first
six months of the work are available in the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 JPA Budget, and the
remaining funds will be proposed in the Fiscal Year 2018-19 JPA Budget.

DISCUSSION:

Attached for reference are a copy of the draft agreement and a summary of the historical
annual costs for the work.

GOALS:

Construct, Manage and Maintain All Facilities and Provide Services to Assure System
Reliability and Environmental Compatibility

Prepared by:  Dave Roberts, Resource Conservation Manager

ATTACHMENTS:
Descr ipt ion

Agreement
Summary of Costs
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Sprayfield O&M Agreement, January 2018 
Page 1 of 13 

 AGREEMENT 
 
 As of January 3, 2018, LAS VIRGENES MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, herein 
"DISTRICT," and W. LITTEN, INC., herein "CONTRACTOR,” agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Work:  

 
(a)    This agreement sets forth the terms for the contractor to furnish Sprayfield 

Operation and Maintenance Services.  The services are described on 
Exhibit “A”. 

 
 (b) The services required under this agreement are variable and dependent on 

recycled water customer demand, weather, field conditions, crop conditions, 
competing demands for the land, and other factors.  DISTRICT is not 
responsible for changes in work load resulting from these variations.   

 
 (c) CONTRACTOR assumes full responsibility for having familiarized itself with 

the nature and extent of the work and CONTRACTOR has visited the areas 
and correlated observations with the requirements of the agreement. 

 
2. Term:   
 
 This agreement is for one year, beginning  January 3, 2018.  This agreement may 

be extended by mutual agreement. 
 
3. Consideration:   
 
 (a) DISTRICT will make payments to CONTRACTOR as set forth on Exhibit “B”. 

The aggregate payments under this Agreement shall not exceed 
$250,000.00 

 
 (b) DISTRICT shall pay CONTRACTOR upon receipt of a monthly invoice for 
types of work performed and hours worked.  The payment will be for actual time worked as 
directed by DISTRICT to accomplish needed tasks.  The Contractor shall present a 
demand for payment no later than the 25th day of the month following the month for which 
payment is sought.  The District’s check for payment shall be mailed.   
 
 (c) DISTRICT may retain sums sufficient to cover unpaid claims.  DISTRICT 

shall deduct from billings and shall not pay the following: 
 
  i. Charges attributable to work that have, in the opinion of the 

DISTRICT, not been performed or have been improperly performed 
by CONTRACTOR. 

 
  ii. Claims for extra work unless the work was approved in writing in 

advance by the DISTRICT. 
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Page 2 of 13 

 
 
4. Laws and Regulations:   
  
 CONTRACTOR shall give notices required by law and comply with laws pertaining 

to the conduct of the work.  CONTRACTOR shall exercise necessary precautions 
for safety and environmental protection and be in compliance with statutory and 
regulatory.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with District policies.  CONTRACTOR shall 
be liable for all violations of the law in connection with the work. 

 
5. Insurance:   
 

 CONTRACTOR shall not commence work without Worker’s Compensation, 
Employer’s Liability, and Liability Insurance.  Insurers must be authorized to do 
business and have an agent for service of process in California.  Excepting only the 
State Compensation Insurance Fund in reference to Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance, insurers must have an “A” policyholder’s rating and a financial rating of at 
least Class VI in accordance with the most current Best’s rating. 

 
CONTRACTOR shall furnish proof of Crime Insurance, including Employee 
Dishonesty/Fidelity Coverage, to protect the District against loss by theft or 
mysterious disappearance of property by any of the CONTRACTOR’S employees 
while DISTRCT property is in the care, custody or control of the CONTRACTOR.  
Coverage amounts shall be not less than $25,000 per employee, or $100,000 
aggregate. 
 
Limits: 
 
General Liability: Bodily injury coverage shall be for not less than $250,000 each 

occurrence and not less than $500,000 aggregate. 
   
    Property damage coverage shall be for not less than $100,000 

each occurrence and $500,000 aggregate. 
 
    Personal injury coverage shall be for not less than $1,000,000 

aggregate. 
 
    Bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage coverage 

shall be in a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000. 
 

Automobile Liability: Bodily injury coverage shall be for not less than $500,000 
each person and not less than $1,000,000 for each accident, 
per each occurrence. 

   
    Property damage coverage shall be for not less than $500,000 

each occurrence  
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     or 
    Bodily injury and property damage coverage shall be in a 

combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence. 

 
 Employer’s Liability:    Bodily injury coverage by accident shall be for not less than 

$1,000,000 for each employee and $1,000,000 for each 
accident. 

 
    Bodily injury coverage by disease shall be for not less than 

$1,000,000 for each employee and $1,000,000 for each 
disease. 

 
 Workers’ Compensation: In accordance with the provisions of Section 3700 of the 

Labor Code, CONTRACTOR shall secure the payment of 
compensation to all employees.  CONTRACTOR shall sign 
and file with the DISTRICT the following certificate prior to 
performing the work of this contract:  “I am aware of the 
provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance 
with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this contract”.   

 
 As evidence of specific insurance coverage, CONTRACTOR shall provide industry-

standard ACCORD forms naming the DISTRICT as additionally insured.  Said 
coverage shall not be amended or cancelled without giving at least 30 days advance 
written notice to DISTRICT.  A waiver of subrogation is to be included. 

 
6. Contractor Representative:   

 
 CONTRACTOR shall maintain a local representative who can be reached during 

normal working hours who is authorized to discuss matters pertaining to the 
agreement.  

 
 CONTRACTOR shall also provide a twenty-four (24) hour per day, seven (7) days 

per week emergency service phone number.  Within two (2) hours after a call is 
made requesting CONTRACTOR perform emergency services, outside of normal 
business hours, CONTRACTOR shall commence the required service.   DISTRICT 
shall not be charged any additional amount for emergency services unless the 
services to be provided would be billed as additional work if done in the regular 
course of CONTRACTOR’S performance. 

 
 
7. Contractor’s Responsibility for Work:   
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CONTRACTOR shall rebuild, repair, restore, and make good all injuries, losses or 
damages to any portion of the work, facilities or the materials occasioned by any 
cause before its completion and acceptance and shall bear the expense thereof.  
Where necessary to protect the work, facilities or materials from damage, 
CONTRACTOR shall at his expense provide suitable drainage and erect such 
temporary structures as are necessary to protect the work, facilities or materials 
from damage.  The suspension of the work or the granting of an extension of time 
from any cause whatever shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of his responsibility for 
the work and materials as herein specified.  In an emergency affecting the safety of 
life or property, including adjoining property, CONTRACTOR, without special 
instructions or authorizations, shall act at his discretion to prevent such threatened 
loss or injury. 

 
8. Safety:   

 
CONTRACTOR shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the 
jobsite, including safety of persons and property during performance of the work.  
The right of the DISTRICT’S representative to conduct review or observation of the 
CONTRACTOR’S performance will not include review or observation of the 
adequacy of the CONTRACTOR’S safety measures in, on, or near the site. 

 
9. Contractor’s Personnel:   
 

(a) DISTRICT may require CONTRACTOR to remove from the work site(s) any 
employee(s) deemed, careless, incompetent, or who is an annoyance to the 
public. 

 
(b) CONTRACTOR shall publish and distribute to all employees, workers and 

subcontractors (hereinafter worker) a statement notifying worker that the 
unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a 
controlled substance is prohibited.  Any worker under the effect or residual 
effect of such controlled substance is considered a hazard and shall be 
removed from the job site immediately.  This notice shall state that the 
worker has an obligation to abide by the terms of the agreement and to notify 
the CONTRACTOR in writing of any violation of a criminal drug statute 
occurring in the workplace or at the job site.  CONTRACTOR shall notify 
DISTRICT of such incident and take appropriate action within thirty (30) 
days.  CONTRACTOR is responsible to see that this requirement is included 
in all Subcontractor contracts. 

 
(c) CONTRACTOR shall provide to its employees environmental, health and 

safety training to ensure compliance with all federal, state and local laws or 
regulations. 

 
10. Assignment of Contract:   
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 CONTRACTOR shall not assign this contract, or any right or interests hereunder, 
without the prior consent in writing of the DISTRICT. 

  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by DISTRICT and CONTRACTOR 
as follows. 
 
Las Virgenes Municipal Water District     
 
 
By: ______________________________________________________  
             David W. Pedersen, Administering Agent/General Manager   
 
 
Dated: ______________________ , 20___   
          
 

 

 

W. Litten Inc.      
 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
                          W. Dean Litten 
 
 
Dated: ______________________ , 20___  
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Wayne K. Lemieux, District Counsel 
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EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 

1. WORK OBJECTIVES 
  

Disposal of surplus recycled water at the Rancho Las Virgenes Farm (Farm) is necessary 
during periods of low demand, from April 15 to November 15 every year, in order to meet the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit for operation of the Tapia 
Water Reclamation Facility (Tapia). Partially treated wastewater or biosolids may also be 
disposed of at the Farm should operational emergencies or upsets occur in the wastewater 
treatment system. The disposal of recycled water requires the planting and harvesting of 
crops for nutrient removal as required by Part 503 of federal biosolids regulations, 
maintenance of catch basins to prevent offsite runoff and general maintenance of the Farm. 
The work includes furnishing labor and equipment necessary to meet these permit 
requirements. 
 
 
2. FACILITIES DESCRIPTION 
 

A. General 
 
 Rancho Las Virgenes Farm 
 3700 Las Virgenes Road 
 Calabasas, CA  91302 
 
 The Rancho Las Virgenes Farm comprises approximately 70 acres of generally flat 

fields, falling off slightly to the west for positive drainage during periods of heavy 
rainfall.  This acreage is divided into 15 separately irrigated fields, 12 of which take 
water through booster pumps.  The farm fields are utilized primarily for seasonal waste 
spray of surplus recycled water.  Occasionally, one or more fields is taken out of 
production, prepped for injection of biosolids, and then replanted after the injection 
process is complete.  A mixture of grasses and legumes—including but not limited to 
fescue, rye, orchard grass, clover and alfalfa--is grown as a means of nutrient and 
moisture uptake and erosion control.  The fields are managed with a variety of 
methods, including but not limited to green chopping, mowing, baling and discing. 

 
 Additionally, approximately 2 acres of hillside has been developed into a field used 

solely for spray application of recycled water.  This area is covered with native 
vegetation. 

 
 Soils vary from clay loam to sandy loam.   
 
 Irrigation water is non-potable water and should not be used for drinking, washing 

or other uses. 
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B. Additional Locations 
 

The Contractor may be requested to perform similar or associated duties on other 
lands.  The cost to complete these requested tasks shall be based upon the unit prices 
contained in the bid form. 

 
C. HOURS OF WORK AND FACILITY ACCESS 

 
As directed, the Contractor shall perform the required work primarily during the hours 
of 7:30 am to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.  Work outside of these hours may be 
directed by District staff, including work in the evening and over weekends and 
holidays.  Labor and equipment requirements vary with the season.  The Contractor 
shall be provided all necessary keys, access cards and codes required to complete the 
work.   

 

3. DISTRICT/CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIVES 
 

The Contractor will work with one or more designated District representatives regarding 
the terms and conditions of the contract.  The Contractor shall designate a single 
representative that has the authority to act for the Contractor. Directives can be either 
verbal or written, although all directives requiring extra work shall be in written form 
only.  If the Contractor acts upon direction from anyone other then the representatives 
named by the District, they will not be entitled to additional compensation for any work 
that results. 

 

4. EQUIPMENT AND LABOR 
 
 The Contractor shall at all times furnish and maintain sufficient labor and equipment to 

perform the work of this contract.   
 
 “To perform the work of this contract” means that the facilities, fields and equipment 

will be continually maintained in the most desirable of conditions, and that water 
application will be maximized – when directed – with zero off-site runoff. 

 
 The Contractors equipment shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the 

District.  There are limited areas available to the Contractor for the storage and/or 
maintenance of equipment and materials. 

 
5. STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE 
 
 Irrigation is accomplished via above ground, solid-set irrigation systems constructed of 

District-owned steel and aluminum irrigation pipe typically arranged in a 40’ by 30’ 
sprinkler head spacing.   

 
  Under no circumstances can the ground be disturbed or can irrigation water be allowed 

to fall within the drip-line of any oak tree. 
 
 All other portions of these specifications notwithstanding, it is agreed that the intent of 
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this contract is to provide a level of management that will also present a pleasing and 
desirable appearance at all times.   

 

 The District representative: 
 
  1. Shall decide any and all questions that may arise as to claims and 

compensation; 
  2. Shall have authority to enforce and make effective such decisions and 

orders as the Contractor fails to promptly carry out; 
  3. Shall have the authority to implement alternative action either by District 

forces or request separate contract to accomplish the work and prevent 
loss or damage based upon the urgency of the conditions;  

  4. Shall decide any and all questions which may arise as to: 
   a. The quality or acceptability of the materials furnished and the 

work performed. 
   b. The manner of performance. 
             c. The rate of performance. 
   d. The interpretation of the work specifications. 
   e. The acceptable fulfillment of the contract on the part of the 

Contractor. 
  5. Shall direct the work and the administration of the work. 
 
6. MATERIALS 
 
 All materials and equipment used shall conform to District specifications.  
 
  Contractor supplied: 

 Caterpillar D6 dozer or equivalent 
  Farm utility tractors 
  Pick-up trucks 
  Flail Mower 
  Ring Roller 
  Chainsaws 
  Spray equipment 
  Weedeaters 

 

  District supplied: 

  John Deere 6320-L tractor 
  Backhoe 
  Crop chopper 
  Harvest wagon 
  Rotary mower 
  Disc 
  Tool bar with chisel plow attachments 
  PTO powered broadcast Seeder 
  Portable pumps – all sizes 
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7. TASK DESCRIPTIONS 
 
  This provides an overview of possible tasks, however, these tasks may or may not 

need to be accomplished, depending upon the conditions present at that time.  
Conditions dictating the need to perform a certain task include District recycled water 
customer irrigation demand, weather, sprayfield conditions, crop conditions, and 
competing demands for use of the land.     

 
  July through August 
 
 Dismantle irrigation pipe. 
 Manage vegetation, as directed, by any or all of the following methods 
  Harvest and transport off fields 
  Cut and leave on field 
  Cut and disc into field 
 Improve drainage of fields as needed 
  Rip soil to 24+ inches 
  Develop and maintain farm ditches, mechanically and by hand 
 Prepare fields for planting as needed 
  May include discing, rock removal, ring rolling 
 Seeding as needed 
 Set up irrigation pipe 
 Weed control on and off fields as directed 
 
  September through November 
 
 Operate sprayfields 
  Turn water on and off, record meter readings, repair breaks, maintain 

equipment 
 Monitor field conditions to prevent runoff 
 Continue with vegetation and weed management 
 

  December through March 
 
 Dismantle irrigation pipe. 
 Pump catch basin water to fields 
 Remove plugs from catch basin drain outlets 
 Manage vegetation, as directed, by any or all of the following methods 
  Harvest and transport off fields 
  Cut and leave on field 
  Cut and disc into field 
 Improve drainage of fields as needed 
  Rip soil to 24+ inches 
  Develop and maintain farm ditches, mechanically and by hand 
 Prepare fields for planting as needed 
  May include discing, rock removal, ring rolling 
 Seeding as needed 

Set up irrigation pipe 
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 Weed control on and off fields as directed 
 

  April through June 
 
 Plug catch basin outlets to storm drain system 
 Operate sprayfields 
  Turn water on and off, record meter readings, repair breaks, maintain 

equipment 
 Monitor field conditions to prevent runoff 
 Continue with vegetation and weed management 
 

  Year round activities 
 
 Maintain and repair farm equipment 
 Maintain roads and fences as needed 
 Maintain irrigation equipment 
  Valve repair, sprinkler head repair, portable pump maintenance, etc. 
 Develop new sprayfields if land becomes available 
  clearing, ripping, discing, seeding and irrigation system setup 
 
8. FIELD CARE 
 
 The Contractor shall receive all fields, drainages, catch basins, roads and adjacent 

areas in good condition at the beginning of the contract.  If the condition of any area 
found to be otherwise at the start of work, the District shall be notified in writing 
immediately.  Necessary repairs shall not occur prior to District authorization. 

  
 At the close of the contract period, all fields, drainages, catch basins, roads and 

adjacent areas shall be checked by the District and shall be returned to the District in a 
satisfactory condition.  Any area found to be in an unsatisfactory condition as a result 
of negligence on the part of the Contractor, as determined by the District, shall be 
repaired by the Contractor at no cost to the District. 

 
9. FIELD MONITORING 
 
 Each day the Contractor is on site, the Contractor shall inspect the sprayfields for soil 

and crop condition and report any problems to the District.   
 
 
10. FIELD MANAGEMENT 
 
 Fields will be managed to optimize the ability to accept irrigation water without runoff.  

Crops will be managed to eliminate weed populations and prevent weed invasion.  
Non-cultivated fields will be managed to eliminate weeds via well-timed fieldwork, as 
conditions permit, and to promote the growth and success of desired vegetation. 

 
 The Contractor shall notify the District immediately upon discovery of damage to any 

fields.  Costs to repair fields or replace crops damaged as a result of anything other 
than Contractor neglect will be borne by the District.  Costs to repair fields or replace 
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crops damaged as a result of Contractor’s neglect shall be borne by the Contractor.  
The Contractor shall repair said damage immediately after authorization to repair has 
been received from the District. 

 

11. MANAGEMENT OF ADJACENT BASINS, BERMS AND ROADS 
 
 A. BASINS 
 
 Basins will not be allowed to fill with sediments, but will always maintain an acceptable 

capacity below the standpipe gate to capture any excess irrigation water that might 
leave the field in an emergency situation. 

 
 B. BERMS 
 
  Berms will be kept clear of weeds, and managed to promote the growth of desired 

vegetation for erosion control. 
 
 C. ROADS 
 
  Roads will be kept clear of weeds and soil.  Potholes and washouts will be repaired 

immediately.  
 
12. EQUIPMENT AND IRRIGATION SYSTEMS CARE 
 
 The Contractor shall receive all equipment and irrigation systems in sound working 

order at the beginning of the contract.  If the working order of any equipment or 
irrigation system component is found to be otherwise at the start of work, the District 
shall be notified in writing immediately.  Necessary repairs shall not occur prior to 
District authorization. 

 
 Irrigation repairs and maintenance shall meet the requirements of DISTRICT and 

American Water Works Association standards and specifications pertaining to recycled 
water use.  The District shall provide a copy of these standards for the Contractor to 
follow. 

 
 At the close of the contract period, all equipment and irrigation system components 

shall be checked by the District and shall be returned to the District in a satisfactory 
condition.  Any equipment or system component found to be faulty as a result of 
negligence on the part of the Contractor, as determined by the District, shall be 
repaired or replaced by the Contractor at no cost to the District. 

 
13. SYSTEMS MONITORING 
 
 The Contractor shall inspect the irrigation systems continually  for broken and clogged 

heads, malfunctioning or leaking valves, or any other conditions that hamper the 
correct operation of the system or reduce irrigation or result in runoff.  The Contractor 
shall clean and adjust irrigation heads as needed for proper coverage.  Authorization 
must be obtained from the District before proceeding with repair work.   
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14. EQUIPMENT AND IRRIGATION SYSTEM MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND 

OPERATION 
 
 The Contractor shall notify the District immediately upon discovery of damage to 

equipment and/or irrigation system components.  Costs to repair or replace equipment 
and/or irrigation system components deteriorating due to normal wear and tear or that 
have been damaged by vandalism will be borne by the District.  Costs to replace 
equipment and/or irrigation system components which have deteriorated or been 
damaged as a result of Contractor’s neglect shall be borne by the Contractor.  The 
Contractor shall repair said damage as soon as possible after authorization to repair 
has been received from the District. 

 
 Any damages resulting from a failure of the Contractor to promptly report or repair 

equipment or irrigation system problems will require Contractor to make repairs at his 
own expense.  All replacement of equipment parts and irrigation system components 
shall be original equipment types where known.  All substitutions for replacement 
equipment and components shall be approved by the District prior to performing the 
work. 

 
 Irrigation shall be performed by the use of manually operated irrigation systems.  The 

Contractor will ensure uniform coverage of the irrigated areas by the irrigation system.   
  
 All damages to public or private property, as well as any fines levied against the District 

as a result of excessive irrigation water or irrigation water run off shall be charged 
against the contract payment unless the Contractor makes immediate reparation to the 
satisfaction of the District. 

 
15. OTHER SERVICES AT JPA FACILITIES AS NEEDED 
 
 In addition to the services identified above, the Contractor shall perform other services 

at JPA facilities, other than the sprayfields, as needed and identified by JPA staff. 
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EXHIBIT  “B” 

SPRAYFIELD PROGRAM SERVICES 

UNIT COSTS 
 Unit Cost1 per 

Hour 

D-6 9U with operator 70.00 

50 HP wheel tractor with operator 52.00 

Pickup trucks 12.00 

Disc 10.00 

Ring Roller 5.00 

Box Scraper 6.00 

Flail Mower 25.00 

Chainsaw 5.75 

Weedeater 5.75 

Labor – Unskilled 23.10 

Labor – Skilled 27.62 

Foreman 31.15 

Operator only for district-supplied equipment 43.70 

Supervisor 43.40 

Labor – Unskilled:  Overtime 9.50 

Labor – Skilled:  Overtime 14.00 

Foreman:  Overtime 15.00 

Operator only for district-supplied equipment:  
Overtime 

21.50 

Supervisor:  Overtime 22.00 

 
1Units include all overhead costs. 

126



C
O

ST
 2

00
7*

 
20

08
**

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

 
B

ud
ge

t

20
17

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 

Ac
tu

al

20
18

 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

R
an

ch
o 

La
s 

Vi
rg

en
es

 F
ar

m
W

. L
itt

en
24

4,
40

8
$ 

 
25

1,
55

0
$ 

 
19

2,
74

2
$ 

 
23

2,
16

3
$ 

 
23

6,
96

4
$ 

 
23

6,
11

8
$ 

 
23

8,
61

4
$ 

 
19

9,
98

9
$ 

 
20

7,
37

0
$ 

 
20

1,
44

7
$ 

 
20

9,
00

0
$ 

 
22

0,
80

8
$ 

 
25

0,
00

0
$ 

   
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
25

,4
10

$ 
   

20
,5

57
$ 

   
37

,8
92

$ 
   

43
,5

84
$ 

   
44

,4
55

$ 
   

42
,7

18
$ 

   
40

,4
59

$ 
   

22
,3

56
$ 

   
29

,2
74

$ 
   

35
,0

00
$ 

   
10

,0
00

$ 
   

27
,2

08
$ 

   
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
S

ub
to

ta
l

26
9,

81
8

$ 
 

27
2,

10
6

$ 
 

23
0,

63
4

$ 
 

27
5,

74
7

$ 
 

28
1,

41
9

$ 
 

27
8,

83
6

$ 
 

27
9,

07
3

$ 
 

22
2,

34
5

$ 
 

23
6,

64
4

$ 
 

28
5,

00
0

$ 
 

21
9,

00
0

$ 
 

24
8,

01
6

$ 
 

28
5,

00
0

$ 
   

 

K
in

g 
G

ill
et

te
 R

an
ch

W
. L

itt
en

99
,4

74
$ 

   
58

,9
02

$ 
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

D
is

tri
ct

12
,1

39
$ 

   
2,

96
9

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
Le

as
e

26
4,

00
0

$ 
 

13
2,

00
0

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

S
ub

to
ta

l
37

5,
61

3
$ 

 
19

3,
87

0
$ 

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   

Su
m

m
ar

y
W

. L
itt

en
34

3,
88

2
$ 

 
31

0,
45

1
$ 

 
19

2,
74

2
$ 

 
23

2,
16

3
$ 

 
23

6,
96

4
$ 

 
23

6,
11

8
$ 

 
23

8,
61

4
$ 

 
19

9,
98

9
$ 

 
20

7,
37

0
$ 

 
20

1,
44

7
$ 

 
20

9,
00

0
$ 

 
22

0,
80

8
$ 

 
25

0,
00

0
$ 

   
 

D
is

tri
ct

 
37

,5
49

$ 
   

23
,5

25
$ 

   
37

,8
92

$ 
   

43
,5

84
$ 

   
44

,4
55

$ 
   

42
,7

18
$ 

   
40

,4
59

$ 
   

26
,3

40
$ 

   
29

,2
74

$ 
   

22
,1

95
$ 

   
35

,0
00

$ 
   

27
,2

08
$ 

   
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
Le

as
e

26
4,

00
0

$ 
 

13
2,

00
0

$ 
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l
64

5,
43

1
$ 

 
46

5,
97

6
$ 

 
23

0,
63

4
$ 

 
27

5,
74

7
$ 

 
28

1,
41

9
$ 

 
27

8,
83

6
$ 

 
27

9,
07

3
$ 

 
22

6,
32

9
$ 

 
23

6,
64

4
$ 

 
22

3,
64

2
$ 

 
21

9,
00

0
$ 

 
24

8,
01

6
$ 

 
28

5,
00

0
$ 

   
 

*r
ed

uc
ed

 K
in

g 
G

ille
tte

 o
pe

ra
tio

n
**

no
 K

in
g 

G
ille

tte
 o

pe
ra

tio
n

EF
FL

U
EN

T 
D

IS
PO

SA
L 

(m
g)

 
 2

00
7*

 
20

08
**

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

 
20

17
 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
Ac

tu
al

Fa
rm

90
37

53
97

75
87

50
25

61
0.

5
 

30
Ki

ng
 G

ille
tte

78
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

00
5 

33
41

21
0

17
5

18
1

11
7

12
0

22
63

 
0

At
ta

ch
m

en
t A

 - 
C

os
t S

um
m

ar
y

127



ITEM 10A

INFORMATION ONLY

 
December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Facilities & Operations

Subject : Carbon Tower Media Replacement: Authorization of Purchase Order

The Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority (JPA) approved funding for this matter in the
JPA Budget.  On November 14, 2017, the LVMWD Board, acting as the Administering Agent
of the JPA, authorized the General Manager to issue a purchase order, in the amount of
$40,000, to Prominent Systems, Inc., for replacement of the carbon tower media at the Tapia
Water Reclamation Facility and at Lift Station Nos. 1 and 2.

SUMMARY:

One of the regular maintenance projects included in the budget is for the periodic replacement
of granular activated carbon in the odor control towers at the Tapia Water Reclamation
Facility and at Lift Station Nos. 1 and 2.  For Fiscal Year 2017-18, one headworks carbon
tower and two primary sedimentation tank carbon towers are scheduled for replacement.  Also,
smaller carbon towers at Lift Station Nos. 1 and 2 are due for replacement.  A request for
quotations was advertised on the District's website and two bids were received for the work. 
Staff recommends award of the work to the low bidder, Prominent Systems, Inc.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

 

FISCAL IMPACT:

Yes

ITEM BUDGETED:

Yes

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds are available in the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 JPA Budget for the media
replacement at the Tapia Water Reclamation Facility.  The cost of the work is allocated 70.6%
to LVMWD and 29.4% to Triunfo Sanitation District.  Sufficient funds are available in the
adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 LVMWD Budget for the media replacement at Lift Station Nos.
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1 and 2, which are LVMWD-only facilities.

DISCUSSION:

There are four carbon towers at Tapia’s headworks facility, and three carbon towers at the
primary sedimentation tanks.  For Fiscal Year 2017-18, one headworks carbon tower (18,000
lbs.) and two primary sedimentation tank carbon towers (6,000 lbs. each) are scheduled for
replacement.  Carbon life expectancy for the primary sedimentation tank carbon towers is
approximately one year, and for the headworks carbon towers it is approximately two years. 
Additionally, there are 600-lb. carbon tower at each lift station, which need replacement
annually.  A request for quotations was advertised on the District's website, and the following
two bids were received for the work:
 
Prominent Systems, Inc.                               $39,001.23                                      
Carbon Activated Corp.                                $40,915.17

GOALS:

Construct, Manage and Maintain All Facilities and Provide Services to Assure System
Reliability and Environmental Compatibility

Prepared by:  Brett Dingman, Water Reclamation Manager
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ITEM 10B

INFORMATION ONLY

 
December 4, 2017 JPA Board Meeting

TO: JPA Board of Directors

FROM: Facilities & Operations

Subject : Tapia and Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project: Award

The Las Virgenes-Triunfo Joint Powers Authority (JPA) approved funding for the Tapia portion
of this matter in the JPA Budget.  The LVMWD Board of Directors, acting as the
Administering Agent of the JPA, accepted the proposal from Retro-Tek Energy Services,
Inc., and authorized the General Manager to execute a contractual services agreement, in the
amount of $441,616, for the Tapia and Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project
($313,545 for Tapia, a JPA project, and $128,071 for Headquarters, an LVMWD project).

SUMMARY:

As a part of an organizational effort to become more energy efficient, staff has been working
with The Energy Network (TEN) to develop plans to systemically replace aging, inefficient
lighting fixtures at the District's major facilities.  Most of the lighting fixtures targeted
for replacement have reached the end of their useful life.  The scope of work for the Tapia and
Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project is to replace the lighting fixtures at the
Tapia Water Reclamation Facility and Headquarters building.
 
A Request for Proposals was released on October 6, 2017, and five proposals were
received.  After reviewing the proposals, staff recommends awarding the project to  Tapia and
Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project to Retro-Tek Energy Services, Inc., the
lowest overall bidder.  The low bid was approximately 20% below the Engineer's Estimate,
and the payback period for the project is estimated to be 6.3 years.

RECOMMENDATION(S):

 

FISCAL IMPACT:

Yes

ITEM BUDGETED:

Yes
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FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The total cost of the project is $441,616, which is 20.1% below the Engineer's Estimate.  The
payback period for the project is estimated to be 6.3 years.  Sufficient funds are available in
the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 JPA and LVMWD Budgets for the work.  No additional
appropriation is needed.
 
Tapia's estimated annual energy savings is 279,924 kWh, or $28,543.85, and annual
maintenance cost-savings are estimated to be $10,451.52 due to the durable nature of
the modern LED lighting fixtures.  Further, an incentive of $16,614.16 was approved  by
SCE for the Tapia portion of the work provided it is completed by February 2018.
 
The Headquarters' estimated annual energy savings is 115,679kWh, or $22,351.08, and
annual maintenance cost-savings are estimated to be $6,122.16.  Further, an incentive of
$1,937.50 was approved by SCE for the Headquarters portion of the work provided it is
completed by August 2018.
 
After accounting for both the incentives and savings in energy and maintenance costs, the
payback period for this project is estimated to be 6.3 years. 

DISCUSSION:

For the last few years, staff has been working with TEN and their specialty energy consultants
to identify and implement energy-saving projects.  TEN is funded by the California Energy
Commission to help public agencies take action to save energy.  Together with TEN, the
District has completed the Westlake Filter Plant LED lighting project, Rancho Sump Pump
Upgrade and the Westlake Pump Station VFD and electrification projects.  The Tapia and
Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project was identified as the next feasible energy-
saving project to implement due to the fact that the lighting fixtures are at the end of their useful
life, replacement parts are not readily available and there will be significant savings from the
upgrades coupled with lower maintenance costs resulting from the modern durable LED
lighting fixtures. 
 
Following is a summary of the five proposals received:
 

Name of
Firms TapiaCost Headquarters

Cost
Total Proposed

Cost

%
Over/below

Estimate
Engineering
Estimate $348,384.00 $204,072.00 $552,456.00  

Retro-Tek $313,545.00 $128,071.00 $441,616.00 -20.1%
Optima $401,180.48 $127,282.74 $528,463.22 -4.3%
Pac Energy $413,046.11 $234,290.81 $647,336.92 17.2%
J Kim $557,928.00 $165,214.00 $723,142.00 30.9%
OSRAM $524,549.23 $232,441.78 $756,991.00 37.0%

 
After reviewing the proposals, including checking the references and qualifications, staff
determined that the proposal from Retro-Tek meets the project requirements.  Although Retro-
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Tek's proposed fee for Headquarters is $788.26 more than that quoted by Optima, Retro-
Tek's had the lowest overall cost for the project.  Staff does not recommend breaking down
the project and awarding the Tapia and Headquarters work separately because  the RFP and
proposals were structured to award the two locations as one contract to take advantage of
economies of scales and obtain the lowest overall cost.  Retro-Tek is also committed to
complete the Tapia and Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project before the
incentive deadlines from SCE.   
 
Funding to retrofit the lighting fixtures at the Rancho Las Virgenes Composting Facility is
proposed to be included in the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Budget.

GOALS:

Construct, Manage and Maintain All Facilities and Provide Services to Assure System
Reliability and Environmental Compatibility

Completion of the Tapia and Headquarters Lighting Efficiency Upgrade Project would not only
improve the existing aging lighting system, it would also reduce the carbon footprint, save
ongoing energy costs, and reduce maintenance costs for decades to come along with an
excellent payback period of 6.3 years.  

Prepared by:  John Zhao. P.E., Principal Engineer

ATTACHMENTS:
Descr ipt ion

Proposal from Retro-Tek
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